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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A FE Y
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

I HE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

F %A

Turnover EEX

Profit before taxation Bk 75 A1 s A
Income tax BT 15

Profit for the year F N F

Profit attributable to: Efa A -

Equity Shareholders of AR AREZREHAE A

the Company

Non-controlling Interests  3F 2 % A% B8 4% &5

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERER

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mEEE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Net assets BEFE
Total equity attributable to: AR BIHEZEEA A

equity Shareholders of FEIE AR

the Company

Non-controlling Interests ~ JFHE AR A% SR iE2s
Total equity B
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2011
—E——F
RMB’000
ARBTR

720,412

37,922
(1,882)

36,040

2011
—e—-%
RMB’000
ABBF R

315,898
836,647

287,816
333,344

531,385

531,385

531,385

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—-HLHFE

2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-%FF —FTTNF —TTN\F —TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETRT AR®TFT ARETT
654,315 396,229 424,072 645,191
43,056 21,5667 38,570 86,285
(2,141) — — —
40,915 21,567 38,570 86,285
40,915 21,567 33,445 58,445
— — 5,125 27,840
40,915 21,567 38,570 86,285

As at 31 December

+=HBA=+—H

2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-%F —ZTTNFE —TTN\F —TTLH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSBTFT ARETRT AR®TFT ARKETR
392,820 316,360 228,956 212,276
832,128 869,579 901,323 932,753
460,598 354,306 348,619 330,472
272,139 370,744 328,884 391,741
492,211 460,889 452,776 422,816
492,211 460,889 361,510 283,546
- — 91,266 139,270
492,211 460,889 452,776 422,816




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
£ F RS

Dear Shareholders,

In 2011, the three power plants of the Group continued
to promote safe production and captured the opportunity
brought by the power shortage in Zhejiang Province
to increase output. The annual production volume was
1,087,889 Mwh, representing an increase of 6.47% as
compared to last year. In addition, the first phase of Anji
thermal power cogeneration project, the fourth clean
energy project of the Group with a planned installed
capacity of 38.5 MW, has commenced construction by
the end of 2011. The total investments amounted to
approximately RMB303,790,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the turnover
of the Group was approximately RMB720,412,000,
representing an increase of 10.10% as compared to
last year. The profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB36,040,000,
representing a decrease of 11.91%. The change in net
profit was primarily due to the decrease in the gross
profit margin of the Group as the Group was unable to
fully pass the increase in natural gas price to users by
increasing tariff.

In 2011, Chinese economy showed a trend of steady
growth despite various challenges such as the monetary
policy adjustment and inflation control by the PRC
government. The GDP of Zhejiang Province for 2011 was
RMB3,200 billion, representing an increase of 9% as
compared to last year while the total power consumption
of Zhejiang Province was 311.691 billion kwh,
representing an increase of 10.5% as compared to last
year, contributing to the increase of production volume
of the Group in 2011. Thus the Group is confident in
the development of more natural gas-fired cogeneration
projects.

The Group is developing new clean energy projects.
The first phase of Anji cogeneration project with a
planned installed capacity of 38.5 MW has commenced
construction by the end of 2011 and major equipments
were purchased. Moreover, in order to expand the
installed capacity of the Company, we are in the process
of preparing for the construction of a new Amber Anji
natural gas-fired cogeneration project, which obtained
the approval from relevant government authorities in April
2012. The total investment amount was approximately
RMB674,092,500 and the project has a planned installed
capacity of 115 MW. On 29 November 2011, the Group
issued convertible bonds of HK$124,800,000 to Amber
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ER2011FRATFHTER (T2 EBEE A
38.5MW - 4835 & 49 A R #303,790,0007T °

BE_T——F+Z_A=+—HIEFE K
EEZ2EXENH A ARKET20,412,0007T -
8 EFHEIN10.10% 0 AARIERIFE ARG
i B #9 A A R #36,040,0007C ¢ =& T
11.91% o @ﬂﬂkﬁigml% T—TF
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20114F » FE AT EEFAEEEHRE £ 4
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RIFFEERAZEENESD - 2001FHITE
TEREEIAREI2ERET  RtER
9% I EEHEREEHAEET3,116.91
BTRE  AEER105% © KN E 20114
BEEENMERESERE—FE BAWRES
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AEBEERBFTNEEEREER A&
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38.5MW © B 2011 F K AT ERXF LTEXR
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BARBEKBE R EEEEZHHOIE
HEH %%ﬁﬂ*$ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%m0¢
ARESEBEBITIMZE  FERIKEY
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116MW o K &£ B B 720114511 A29 H [ 3t
IHEI BRI E F R A A 21T 7 124,800,000/ 7T
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FRERE

International Investment Co., Ltd. for the investment in
the new Anji cogeneration project.

Looking forward, the Company will face great challenges
and opportunities. The clean energy industry will be
one of the industries with the strongest development
potential. As one of the clean energy providers in
Zhejiang Province, the Group will benefit from the
PRC government’s favorable policies promoting
environmentally friendly energy. However, economic
slowdown and high inflation rate in China will put
pressure on the operation and performance of the
Company, which will be further adversely affected
in 2012 due to the expiry of various preferential tax
treatments for the power plants of the Group.

The first phase of Anji cogeneration project of the Group
and the new Amber Anji natural gas-fired cogeneration
project were approved by the relevant Zhejiang provincial
government departments, proving that the clean energy-
fired power generation model of the Company matches
the trend of power consumption in developed areas
of China. The market share of traditional coal-fired
power is decreasing while the clean energy power plant
developed by the Group is gaining recognition with a
promising outlook.

In addition to the Anji cogeneration projects under
construction, the Group plans to further develop and
invest in natural gas-fired cogeneration projects, and
conduct research in developing other sources of clean
energy in addition to natural gas to expand the project
reserves for its current stage of development as well as
long-term development and increase its market share in
the clean energy supply industry in China.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all
directors, the management team and staff for their
dedication, as well as all our shareholders and business
partners for their support and contribution to the safe
production and sound operation of the three power
plants as well as the construction of the new projects in
the previous year.

The Group is confident and will do its best to achieve
outstanding results in the future.

Ding Guang Ping
Chairman, Board of Directors

Zhejiang Province, China, 23 March 2012
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W N DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Installed Capacity

The Group has three wholly-owned gas-fired power
plants, namely Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd.* (MMIIFIAERERAREE
BR A &) (formerly known as Zhejiang De-Neng Natural
Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd* (M LEERAREEA
fR A A]) (“De-Neng Power Plant”), Hangzhou Amber Blue
Sky Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd.* (#71/H3% 4
ERKAREEAMRAR) (‘Blue Sky Power Plant”) and
Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas Power Generation
Co., Ltd.* (IIIRIARERAREEHR A 7)) (“Jing-Xing
Power Plant”). As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate
installed capacity and attributable installed capacity of
the above power plants was approximately 299MW.

Development of Gas Turbine Thermal Power Project

Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd.,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
incorporated on 25 February 2011 in Anji in Zhejiang
Province for the development of the first phase of Aniji
power project (“Anji Project”), a new project of gas
turbine thermal power cogeneration. The installed

capacity of the first phase of Anji Project was planned
to be 38.5MW and the total investment amounted to
approximately RMB303,790,000. The construction of
foundation commenced in the end of December 2011.
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EBEE

KERE

AEE2EHRAB=FMMRER BT 3N
RERRRZEAR A (AT IRER
ARBEERAR) ([BEEML MR
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MRMRRHEIEE
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NAIRIM(RE)MRBAEFER AR EMNT
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H > SHEIREAE A38.5MW - sHEIRERE D
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AERARBEEZTRE EAEZRBE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Development of Gas Turbine Thermal Power Project
(Continued)

In addition, the Company is in the process of preparing
for the development of the new Amber Anji natural gas-
fired cogeneration project, which obtained the approval
from relevant government authorities in April 2012 with a
planned installed capacity of 115 MW.

Production Volume

The production volume for the vyear ended 31
December 2011 was 1,087,889Mwh, representing an
increase of 6.47% as compared with last year (2010:
1,021,772Mwh).

In 2011, Zhejiang Province was experiencing power
shortages, with sufficient gas supply due to the increase
of aggregate amount of natural gas. The Group, as a
clean energy plant for peak-loading, benefited from
the government policies which encouraged the use of
clean energy. As a result, our power production volume
increased in 2011.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 =Z——FE#HE (0O9

EHOREE)
FRBMARERE (&)

S AREERBHOEIAL ST RARER
EMEBEEMNSEHER T 1E  WHK2012F4
RESBBBRTEIIZE TEIEERRER
115MW o

BE_ZT——F+_-_A=1+—HBHILFERN
% E 8 /1,087,889Mwh Lt = F 1 h16.47%
(ZZE—FF :1,021,772Mwh) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W N DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Production Volume (Continued)

The three power plants operated by the Group are peak-
loading plants and they were granted a 3,500-hours
power generation plan by the relevant government
authorities in 2011. For the year ended 31 December
2011, the average utilization hours were 3,638 hours,
representing an increase of 6.47% as compared with last
year (2010: 3,417 hours).

Natural Gas Supply

In 2011, as the natural gas supply in Zhejiang Province
was comparatively sufficient, the Group had sufficient
natural gas supply to meet its production needs. The
total natural gas supply for the year ended 31 December
2011 was 256.75 million m?3, representing an increase of
7.16% as compared with last year (2010: 239.59 million
m3).

Cost of Fuel

Natural gas is the only source of fuel for the Group’s
power plants. The natural gas price is determined by the
Price Bureau of Zhejiang Province. The price of natural
gas (inclusive of VAT) increased by RMB0.33/m? to
RMB2.41/m? since 15 July 2010, 30% of which was
borne by the natural gas-fired power plant and the
remaining 70% was covered by raising on-grid tariff, and
it remained stable up to date.

Since the Group was unable to pass the entire increase
in natural gas price to users, the percentage of fuel
cost to turnover has increased. For the year ended 31
December 2011, the fuel cost accounted for 76.00%
of the turnover, representing an increase of 2.55
percentage points as compared with last year.

On-grid Tariff

On-grid tariff is determined by the Price Bureau of
Zhejiang Province after reasonably taking into account
the types of fuel, cost structure and operating profit
of similar power plants within the provincial grid. The
on-grid tariff (inclusive of VAT) has been increased by
RMBO0.06/kwh from RMBO0.74/kwh to RMB0.80/kwh
since 15 July 2010 and remained at the same level
thereafter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEENRE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 was approximately RMB720,412,000
(2010: RMB654,315,000), representing an increase of
10.10% as compared with last year.

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
approximately RMB36,040,000 (2010: RMB40,915,000),
representing a decrease of 11.91% as compared with
2010. Earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.09 for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: RMBO0.10).

Turnover

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 amounted to approximately RMB720,412,000,
representing an increase of 10.10% as compared with
RMB654,315,000 for the last year. The increase in
turnover was primarily due to the increase of production
volume as compared with last year.

Operating Costs

In 2011, the operating costs of the Group were
RMB642,861,000, representing an increase of 12.29%
as compared with RMB572,483,000 for 2010. The
increase in operating costs was in line with the increase
in turnover but at a higher rate, which was mainly
because the increase in natural gas price since 15
July 2010 was unable to be passed to customers fully
through raising tariff, and the increase in sales related
taxes including the construction tax and education
surcharges applicable to the subsidiaries of the Group.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs mainly comprise of the net balance
of bank interest income and interest expense on bank
and other borrowings. For the year ended 31 December
2011, net finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB40,996,000 (2010: RMB40,130,000), representing
an increase of 2.16% as compared with last year. The
slight increase in net finance costs was due to the
increase in interest expenses on bank borrowings as the
People’s Bank of China raised the benchmark interest
rates of loans denominated in Renminbi from financial
institutions three times since 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other Net Income

Other net income refers to the government grants
from local government authorities which are offered as
incentives for the Group’s development in the clean
energy power industry and our contributions to the
local economy. For the year ended 31 December 2011,
other net income of approximately RMB1,367,000
(2010: RMB1,354,000) was mainly comprised of local
government grants received by power plants of the
Group that were awarded as the result of the Group’s
contribution to the local economy.

Income Tax

All our power plants are entitled to full exemption from
PRC income tax for the first two years commencing from
the first profitable year of operation and a 50% reduction
of the applicable PRC income tax rates for the following
three years. According to the relevant regulations by
the State Administration of Taxation, the power plants
of the Group, being the foreign-owned enterprises
which purchased PRC-manufactured equipment, are
entitled to a corporate income tax credit of up to 40%
of the respective purchase amount. No provision of
PRC income tax was provided for the year ended 31
December 2011 because all our power plants were
entitled to such corporate income tax credit granted
by the State Tax Bureau of the respective local county.
No provision of income tax was made for the members
of the Group outside of the PRC as the Group had no
assessable profits generated outside the PRC.

As the above-mentioned income tax exemption and half
reduction policy expired on 31 December 2011 and the
tax exemption for De-Neng Power Plant and Blue Sky
Power Plant expired on 31 December 2011, and the
tax exemption for Jing-Xing Power Plant will be expired
on 31 December 2012, the PRC enterprise income
tax for plants operated by the Group, except for Jing-
Xing Power Plant which continues to enjoy certain tax
exemption treatment, have been provided and would be
paid at a rate of 25% since 1 January 2012, which would
have resulted in adverse effects on the operating results
of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEB W&

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Income Tax (Continued)

Pursuant to the Tax Law, 5% withholding tax is levied
on foreign investors in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a foreign investment enterprise’s profits
earned after 1 January 2008. The applicable tax rate of
the Group is 5%. As at 31 December 2011, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB1,882,000 was recognized.

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

For the vyear ended 31 December 2011, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB36,040,000 (2010: RMB40,915,000),
representing a decrease of RMB4,875,000, or
approximately 11.91%, as compared with last year.

The decrease in profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company was mainly attributable to:

Natural gas price increased by RMBO0.33/m?® with effect
from 15 July 2010. Of which, 30% of the increased
cost was borne by natural gas power plants and the
remaining 70% was covered by increasing the tariff by
RMBO0.06/kwh;

Pursuant to Circular Guofa [2010] No. 35 issued by the
State Council of the PRC on 18 October 2010, foreign
investment enterprises were not entitled to waivers or
reductions in construction tax and education surcharge
with effect from 1 December 2010. The power plants
of the Group were required to pay construction tax and
education surcharge from 1 December 2010 at the rates
of 5% or 7% and 3% of the VAT paid respectively.

Nevertheless, the Group grasped the opportunity arising
from the power shortage in Zhejiang and the production
volume of power exceeded the planned utilization hours
so as to minimize the adverse effect caused by the two
unfavorable factors mentioned above.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Net cash used in operating activities was
RMB74,303,000 (Net cash generated in 2010:
RMB143,714,000). The significant decrease in the net
cash generated from operating activities over last year
was mainly due to the fact that the promissory notes
issued in previous year for the payment of fuel costs,
which were with lower costs, were due in the vyear.
As the discount rates of promissory notes increased
significantly in the year, the Group reduced the use
of promissory notes with higher discount rates but
settled fuel costs by cash instead so as to reduce
financial costs, which resulted in the decrease in bill
payables of RMB180,415,000. In addition, secured
deposits related to promissory notes of RMB85,429,000
were released. Age of the Group’s receivables is one
month and in general, the tariff revenue generated in
the previous month is received in the current month
and used for the settlement of fuel purchases of the
current month. Credit record of our customers was
satisfactory and there has been no risks of default. Net
cash used in investing activities was RMB93,846,000
(2010: RMB11,632,000) which was mainly used for
the payment of property, plant and equipment. The
purchasing costs of major equipments for Anji projects
were RMB77,055,000. Net cash generated from
financing activities was RMB161,977,000 (net cash used
in 2010: RMB142,519,000), which was primarily due
to the issuance of convertible bonds of approximately
RMB100,945,000 by the Company during the vyear,
release of secured deposits of RMB85,429,000 upon the
payment of the bill payables when due and the dividend
payment of RMB20,697,000 to shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a cash
balance of RMB168,709,000 (31 December
2010: RMB174,881,000). Of which approximately
RMB100,945,000 (representing proceeds raised from
the issuance of convertible bonds in November 2011)
was designated for financing the new Anji thermal power
project, while the remaining balance of approximately
RMB67,764,000 was available for working capital
purpose. Cash was generally placed with banks as
short-term deposit.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current
assets of approximately RMB28,082,000 (31 December
2010: net current liabilities of RMB67,778,000). The
net current liabilities have turned into net current
assets. Such improvement was primarily because
the Group issued five-year convertible bonds in 2011
which amounted to HK$124,800,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB100,945,000) and the Group’s Blue
Sky Power Plant obtained middle to long term bank
borrowings of RMB174,000,000.

The Group regularly monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it fulfills its short-term and
long-term liquidity requirements. In spite of the fact
that part of its borrowings is short-term borrowings
expiring within one year from major banks with which
the Group maintains long term satisfactory cooperation
relationships, the Directors are confident that the Group
will be able to satisfy all conditions associated with the
renewal of the short-term borrowing required by the
banks. The Directors believe that the Group has sufficient
working capital for future operations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of its gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debt (including all loans and borrowings as well as long
term payables, as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt. As at 31 December 2011, the gearing ratio was
43.23%, representing an increase of 2.8 percentage
points (31 December 2010: 40.43%) over 2010, which
was mainly due to the issuance of convertible bonds
of approximately RMB100,945,000 by the Group in the
year.

Foreign Exchange

The Group has placed Hong Kong dollar short term
deposits with licensed banks in Hong Kong. With the
exchange rate fluctuation between the Hong Kong
Dollar and Renminbi, such exchange movement may
affect the financial position of the Group. Since the
Group’s operating expenses were mainly denominated in
Renminbi and its turnover was also settled in Renminbi,
the Group did not hedge the exchange risks through any
forward contracts or other instruments.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had authorized,
but not contracted for, capital commitments relating
to property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB487,238,000. During the year, the Group had not
had any major contingent liabilities and off-balance-sheet
commitments.

Details of the capital commitment of the Group are set
out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering

In July 2009, the Company issued 115,000,000 shares
(including 15,000,000 shares issued upon the exercise
of over-allocation option) under the Initial Public
Offering. The offer price was HK$1.66 per share and
the net proceeds from the Initial Public Offering were
approximately RMB129,306,000 after deducting the
Initial Public Offering expenses.

As at the date of this report, approximately
RMB30,000,000 of the net proceeds was used in
accordance with the manner as set out in the prospectus
dated 29 June 2009 (“Prospectus”), for payment of
the balance consideration for the acquisition of 47%
minority interests in De-Neng Power Plant. According
to the Prospectus and the announcement on the over-
allocation of shares, approximately RMB92,540,000 was
set aside for the development of the first phase of Anji
Project in Zhejiang Province.

Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. was
incorporated on 25 February 2011 under the first phase
of Anji Project, with a registered capital of approximately
RMB105,211,000 (equivalent to USD16,000,000).

The Group injected its initial investment of
RMB66,974,400 (equivalent to USD10,286,700) to
Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. on
17 May 2011, accounting for 64.29% of its registered
capital, and made another investment of approximately
RMB36,189,425 (equivalent to USD5,713,300) to
Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. on 7
December 2011, representing 35.71% of its registered
capital.

As at 31 December 2011, the registered capital of
USD16,000,000 of Amber (Anj) Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd. was fully paid up. The net proceeds
from Initial Public Offering were fully utilized in
accordance with the manner as set out in the Prospectus
and the announcement on the over-allocation of shares.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 18 October 2011, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with  Amber International
Investment Co., Ltd. (“Amber International”) pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
issue, and Amber International has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for, the convertible bonds (“Convertible
Bonds”) in the principal amount of HK$124,800,000 due
five years from the date of issue convertible into shares
of the Company at the initial conversion price of HK$1.3
per share (subject to adjustments), subject to the terms
and conditions thereof. The Convertible Bond bears
an interest of 2% per annum payable semi-annually in
arrears. Completion of the Convertible Bonds issue took
place on 29 November 2011.

Assuming the exercise in full of the conversion rights
attaching to the Convertible Bonds at the conversion
price of HK$1.3 per share, a total of 96,000,000
conversion shares (“Conversion Shares”) will be issued,
representing approximately 23.13% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company and approximately
18.79% of the issued share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the full conversion. The Conversion
Shares, when allotted and issued, will rank pari passu
in all respects among themselves and with the shares
in issue of the Company as at the date of allotment
and issue of the Conversion Shares. As of the date of
this report, no Convertible Bond has been converted to
Conversion Shares. The net proceeds from the issue of
Convertible Bonds of approximately HK$120,090,000 is
intended to be used for funding of a new gas-fired power
cogeneration project located in Anji County, Zhejiang
Province, PRC.
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PROSPECTS

Since climatic changes and development of low carbon
economy will be under global spotlight, the clean
energy industry will be one of the industries with the
strongest development potential. Under the 12th Five
Year Plan, the clean energy industry of China will be
further developed to optimize the structure of the energy
generation industry. The use of coal in power generation
will be reduced while the use of natural gas and other
reusable energy sources will be increased. As one of
the clean energy providers in Zhejiang Province, our
Group will benefit from the favorable policies promoting
environmentally friendly energy of the PRC government.

The Board is of the view that the Chinese Government
will advocate energy conservation and emission
reduction and promote the development of a low-carbon
economy. As the proportion of renewable energy to total
energy consumption in China is low and natural gas
is a fossil fuel and important transition fuel which is in
compliance with the environment protection standards, it
is expected that the Chinese Government will put more
efforts in developing renewable energy and increase
the proportion of natural gas to the primary energy.
The proportion of natural gas to the primary energy will
be increased from 4.3% in 2010 to 8.3% at the end of
2015. Natural gas is expected to be one of the major
clean energies used in China in the first half of the 21st
century.

Natural gas is also important to the adjustment of overall
energy structure, environmental protection and industrial
development in Zhejiang Province. Therefore, natural gas
is widely introduced in Zhejiang Province. As the total
supply of natural gas home and abroad keeps increasing
and the supply of natural gas in China is expected to
increase significantly to sufficient level during the period
of the 12th Five Year Plan, we believe that the supply
of gas to Zhejiang as well as the Group will further
increase. The supply of natural gas through West-East
Gas Pipeline (Phase 1) of PetroChina to Zhejiang will
also increase along with the increase of gas supply from
Sichuan to Zhejiang. West-East Gas Pipeline (Phase Il) of
PetroChina is expected to cover Zhejiang in 2012.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

The directors believe that, despite the various
challenges, the PRC economy will maintain steady
growth and development, and the power demand will
continue to increase. Zhejiang Provincial Government
also expects that the demand of electricity in Zhejiang
Province will increase significantly during the period of
the 12th Five Year Plan. Accordingly, Zhejiang Provincial
Government will provide support to the construction of a
series of natural gas-fired cogeneration projects, which
are planned to commence production in 2012 and 2013,
so as to solve the shortage supply of electricity. This
will be a great opportunity for the Group to develop a
new natural gas-fired cogeneration project in Zhejiang
Province.

Grasping this opportunity, the Group continues to
develop new natural gas-fired cogeneration projects.
Upon the operation of phase one of Anji Project which
is under construction and the new Anji power project
which is under preparation, there will be an additional of
approximately 154MW of installed capacity, increasing
the Group’s installed capacity by approximately 51.50%.
Sources of operating income of the Group will further
expanded.

The Group will further strengthen and develop its human
resources and the training of talents to create a better
enterprise cultural atmosphere. In addition, the Group
will continue to enhance its budget management and
risk control, and upgrade its corporate governance in
order to facilitate its steady growth and sustainable
development.

The management team is in the opinion that the
Company faces significant developing opportunities
with challenges. The preferential tax treatments for the
subsidiaries of the Group will expire from 2012, which
may have adverse effects on the annual operating results
of the Group in 2012. However, leveraging the core
business of clean energy in the PRC, the Group believes
that it will have remarkable development in the future and
will become a leading clean energy enterprise in China in
the long run.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.025 per share payable to shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the register of
members on 8 June 2012. The proposed final dividend
will be paid on or around 22 June 2012 following
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

MAJOR INVESTMENT, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

Except for the transactions for the purchase of gas
turbines as disclosed in the announcements dated 25
May 2011 and 21 December 2011, during the year
ended 31 December 2011 and up to the date of this
report, the Group did not have any major acquisitions or
disposals.

HEALTH AND SAFETY COMPLIANCE

The Group’s power plants have adopted various internal
policies and implemented protective measures to prevent
health and safety hazards. The policies adopted by the
Company are in line with government regulations. There
were no material accidents or suspensions during the
year.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

Each of the Group’s power plants has installed a
monitoring system to monitor the emission volume
of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxides on a real-time
basis. The emission is inspected regularly to determine
whether the relevant standard has been satisfied before
discharge.

During the power generation process, conventional coal-
fired power plant discharges waste water and emits
air pollutants, such as sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides
and fine particles. The Group’s power plants are fuelled
with natural gas which is a cleaner fossil fuel. Unlike
conventional coal-fired power plants, the Group’s power
plants emit significantly less amount of nitrogen oxides
and barely any sulphur dioxide and fine particles. For the
same amount of heat generated, combusting natural gas
releases less than 50% carbon dioxide as compared to
combusting coal.

The Group believes that the environmental protection
system and facilities in our power plants are in full
compliance with the national and local regulations on
environment protection.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERENEEABERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

1.

Mr. CHAI Wei (418)

Mr. Chai, aged 41, was appointed as an
executive Director on 8 September 2008. Mr.
Chai is also the President of the Company. He is
responsible for the overall business strategy and
corporate development of the Group, sourcing
and development of new projects and maintaining
relationship between the Group and the local
government authorities in  which the Group’s
power plants are located. Mr. Chai has over 18
years of experience in corporate development
and management in a variety of sectors, including
energy and public media. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chai worked in public media industries.
Mr. Chai was the founder of Zhejiang King Island
Limited (MI£SEEEMRAF) and Zhejiang
Expressway Advertising Co. (MISEEEA
Al). He was a director and general manager of
Zhejiang King lIsland Limited (I & BEEER
72 7A]) during the period from 1992 to 2003 and
was the vice-chairman and general manager of
Zhejiang Expressway Advertising Co. (/T =& E
£/ A)) during the period from 1998 to 2003. Since
2005, Mr. Chai has been responsible for the overall
management of all our power plants, namely Blue
Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-
Xing Power Plant (collectively “Our Power Plants”).
Mr. Chai has been a director of Shanghai Pu-Xing
Energy Limited (/&% £ 8ERBMR A R]) (“Shanghai
Pu-Xing”) since 2002 and was the general manager
of Shanghai Pu-Xing during the period from 2002 to
December 2008. He is currently the Vice President
of China Energy Association, deputy director of the
editors committee of Zhejiang Economic Magazine
(T ASEMHARES), and member of the China
Natural Gas Industry Magazine Council ( {FFEIX
KRR TE) #FIEES). Mr. Chai graduated from
Zhejiang Art and Craft School (#7/T 4 T & & iT24K)
majoring in industrial design.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

2.

Mr. DING Guang Ping (T %)

Mr. Ding, aged 54, a non-executive Director of
the Company and the Chairman of the Board. Mr.
Ding was appointed as a Director on 21 March
2009. Mr. Ding has over 12 years of experience
in corporate management and had worked for
the government for over 10 years. Prior to joining
the Group in March 2009, Mr. Ding was the head
of the Urumgi Commission for Economic System
Restructuring Production Department (5 & /K25 82
ME A FERR) during the period from July 1989 to
March 1994 and was the deputy director of the
Urumai Economic Commission (5&8ARBEKEZ 8
&) and chief of the Urumaji Bureau of Exploration &
Development of Geology & Mineral Resources (&
BAREMIEE) during the period from April 1994
to 1999. He was the chairman of SDIC Xinjiang
Luobupo Potash Co., Ltd (¥iEZ&Mm AREER
[R/A7F]) and was the chief executive of D’Long
International Strategic Investment Company (&
P BRR BRI E AR A 7). Mr. Ding has been the
managing president of China Wanxiang Holding
Co., Ltd (FEIERIZERARAF]) since 2005 and
is responsible for the overall management of the
company. He has been a director of Shanghai Pu-
Xing since December 2008. Mr. Ding graduated
from Xi’an University of Science & Technology (74
ZHEEEPT) in 1989 with a Bachelor’'s degree
in  Engineering, majoring in industrial electric
automation, and completed his post-graduate
study in political economics in 1999. Mr. Ding is
nominated to the Board by Mr. Lu Wei Ding, a
controlling Shareholder.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

3.

Mr. FENG Li Min (5 R)

Mr. Feng, aged 50, a non-executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Feng joined the Group when
he was appointed as a Director on 21 March
2009. Mr. Feng has over 21 years of experience
in banking and corporate finance. Mr. Feng has
been the vice-president of China Wanxiang Holding
Co., Ltd (FEEMZERRERAF]) since 2005. He
was a director of Shanghai Pu-Xing from February
2007 until December 2008. He had worked for
Woncore Communications Co., Ltd from 2001 to
2004 as vice-president and chief financial officer.
Prior to that, he worked for Bank of China during
the period from 1983 to 1990 and for P&O Steam
Navigation from 1993 to 2000. Mr. Feng graduated
from University of International Relations (I &8 {&
E%) in 1983 with a BA Degree in English literature
and international relations. Mr. Feng is nominated
to the Board by Mr. Lu Wei Ding, a controlling
Shareholder.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

4.

Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin (3&5F#%)

Mr. Zhang, aged 52, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Zhang
was appointed a Director on 25 May 2009. Mr.
Zhang is currently the Managing Director in Special
Investment Department of China Investment
Corporation. He has over 21 years of experience
in corporate finance and investment banking.
Mr. Zhang had worked for Barclays Capital as
Managing Director and Securicor Asia Management
Limited as Managing Director. Mr. Zhang holds
a Master Degree in Business Administration from
Harvard University and a Bachelor's Degree in
Engineering from The University of Queensland.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIYEHITEES (&)
(Continued)
5. Mr. TSE Chi Man (& X) HEXKE

Mr. Tse, aged 58, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Tse was appointed
as a Director on 25 May 2009. Mr. Tse has over
20 years of experience in finance and business
development management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tse held various positions in a number
of organizations including Chase Manhattan Asia
Limited as a director, Inchcape Pacific Limited
as mergers and acquisitions director, Lerado
Group Holdings Limited as executive director
and Dresdner Kleinwort Benson China Limited as
managing director. Mr. Tse had worked for Imagi
International Holdings Limited, a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) from 1999 to 2008 where he
served as a director since 2004 and chief financial
officer since 2007 overseeing the company’s
accounting and finance, administration and human
resources functions. Mr. Tse was also a member
of the Vocational Training Council Design Institute
Advisory Board. Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor’'s Degree
and a Master Degree in Business Administration,
both from the University of Texas, Arlington.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

6.

Mr. YAO Xian Guo (k5% E)

Mr. Yao, aged 59, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Yao was appointed
as a Director on 25 May 2009. Mr. Yao is the dean,
professor of the College of Public Administration,
Zhejiang University. He is also a member of The
Expert Evaluation Committee of National Social
Science Foundation of China (BIR#tE&RIEE
S BRIFFFEMEER), vice-chairman of the China
Industrial Economic Association (7B T S48 /752
&), member of the Zhejiang Government Advisory
Council (#IT&EBFAAZ B ) and the chairman
of the Zhejiang Public Administration Association
(IIEAHEIRES). Mr. Yao holds a Master
Degree in Economics from Fudan University. Mr.
Yao is currently an independent non-executive
director of Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd. and Wolong
Electric Group Co., Ltd., both are companies listed
on Shanghai Stock Exchange, and Zhejiang Asia-
Pacific Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Yao also served
as independent non-executive director in Zhejiang
Guangsha Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Xinhu Venture
Investment Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Southeast
Electric Power Company Limited, all are companies
listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, and Zhejiang
Hailiang Co., Ltd., a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, each of the Directors
(i) has not held any directorships in the last three
years in any public companies the securities
of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas; (i) does not have any
relationship  with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling
Shareholders of the Company; (i) does not hold
any positions in the Company or other members
of the Group; and (iv) does not have any interests
in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SHEN Jian Ping (Jt#¥), aged 58, is the Vice
President of the Company and a director of Blue Sky
Power Plant. Mr. Shen joined the Group in July 2004.
Mr. Shen is responsible for the project development
management of the Group. He has over 36 years
of experience in the power industry. Mr. Shen had
worked at Hang Zhou Thermal Power Plant (H1/HZ4E
%) as deputy factory manager and at Hang Zhou Xie
Lian Thermoelectricity Co., Ltd. (fAMpEEAEERE D
A]) as general manager. He is the Visiting Professor of
Wuhan Electric Power Technical College (EUZE 118
ERITEPRR) since 2006 and a member of the Zhejiang
Engineering Thermophysics Committee (47 T& TI2EY)
I8 E @) since 1995. He graduated from Correspondence
College of the Party School of the Central Committee
of C.P.C. (fHFRERKIFER) in 2000, majoring in
economics and Zhejiang University (1T A£2) in 2000
majoring in thermal energy and power engineering.

Mr. ZHENG Xiao Dong (#/)¥), aged 40, is the Chief
Engineer of the Company and a director of Blue Sky
Power Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant. Mr. Zheng
joined the Group in December 2004. Mr. Zheng is
responsible for project construction management of the
Group. He has over 14 years of experience in the power
industry. Before joining the Company, he worked as the
Deputy Chief Engineer at Jiang Su Dong Tai Thermal
Power Plant (T# 3R & ZE ). He graduated from Hohai
University (A8 AE) in 2003, majoring in electrical
engineering and automation.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAl Chun Yu (B#R=F), aged 35, is the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Lai is a member of
CPA Australia since 2002 and a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
2004. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in business of
Queensland University of Technology and has over
12 years of experiences in accounting, auditing and
financial management. Mr. Lai joined the Group in May
2009. Prior to that, Mr. Lai was the qualified accountant
and company secretary of a PRC-based computer-
aided software solution provider. In addition, he was
the financial controller of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services
Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, and had worked for one of the top four
international accounting firms.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited accounts of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
development, operation and management of power
plants fuelled by natural gas in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2011 are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 51.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.025 per share for the year ended 31 December
2011 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on Friday, 8 June
2012. The proposed final dividend will be paid on
or around 22 June 2012 following approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued
share capital of the Company are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, distributable reserves
(including share premium and retained earnings) of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB115,499,000
(2010: RMB105,565,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particular of the borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the donations
made by the Group amounted to RMB50,000 (2010:
RMB40,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.
The Company does not currently have any share option
arrangement.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the percentage
of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and its five largest customers combined was 73.21%
and 100%, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had
only one supplier of natural gas and it attributed to 100%
of the Group’s natural gas purchases.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
(Continued)

To the knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors
of the Company or their associates, or any shareholder
holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company held any interests in any of the above
customers and suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 18 October 2011, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement  (“Subscription  Agreement”)
with Amber International Investment Co., Ltd. (“Amber
International”) pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue, and Amber International
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the convertible
bond (“Convertible Bond”) in the principal amount
of HK$124,800,000 due five years from the date of
issue convertible into shares of the Company at the
initial conversion price of HK$1.3 per share (subject
to adjustments), subject to the terms and conditions
thereof.

Amber International is the controlling shareholder of the
Company holding 72.29% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Amber International is therefore a
connected person of the Company and the transaction
contemplated under the Subscription Agreement
constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”), which is subject
to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.

The Subscription Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder was approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
24 November 2011 and completion of the Convertible
Bond issue took place on 29 November 2011.

The Company has complied with the disclosure

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of the above connected transaction.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions entered
into by the Group in the normal course of business are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements. Apart
from the issue of Convertible Bonds as disclosed in
note 26 (a) to the financial statements which constituted
a connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules and has been separately disclosed under
the paragraph headed “Connected Transaction” in this
report, these transactions do not constitute connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2011 and up to date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAI Wei (President)
Mr. HU Xian Wei (resigned on 15 January 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. DING Guang Ping (Chairman)
Mr. FENG Li Min

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin
Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xian Guo

The Directors’ biographical information is set out on
pages 23 to 27.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors (including non-executive
Directors) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
each annual general meeting. Mr. Zhang Shou Lin, Mr.
Ding Guang Ping and Mr. Feng Li Min will retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr.
Zhang Shou Lin has decided not to offer himself for re-
election as a director of the Company due to his personal
work commitments. Mr. Ding Guang Ping and Mr. Feng
Li Min would like to reduce some of their workload and
devote more time to their other business endeavours,
they have therefore decided not to offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years. None of the
Directors has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted as
at 31 December 2011 or any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance) (“SFO”) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions in which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Continued)

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2011
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company’s
holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of
the Company, as at 31 December 2011, the following
persons (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which are required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

EERFADAREEABEIENRS
fgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁqﬂﬁﬁlﬁ@%é&/ﬁ
KB (#)

BE_ T+t -_A=t—BLFEARE
ﬂﬁﬂaﬁ ARE - HEAMBLRA - AR
DA HA R AHER D B B ERIH B A RS &
/,\Eﬂzﬂ# BEEEHHEBRA(LD
RAFTERE) IR KRBEAR A S EME M
AANBEZBMHESmES o

FERRZEER AR

RARBEMNESHETETHRAERAM - R
—E——%+-A=Z+—8 " THAL(K
RAIESTHEFETHRABERINRAR G R
HHEERDTHEEREFESFKBAEKRME
XVEBSE2 N 350 38 A [ 2N A B 3 & /9 4 25 5k
KB HARALRRRREBERESF RBAE K
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Number of shares/ Percentage of

underlying issued
shares held (mote 1) share capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest RER®, EEBRTRA
RRER HaEME R 5 BB e Bk
Amber International Beneficial interest 396,000,000 2 (L) 95.42%
Investment Co., Ltd. ExnEAEA 396,000,000 E2) (L)
(“Amber International”)
FRIHER R ERR AR
( T3RIBEERR] )
GDZ International Limited Interest in controlled 396,000,000 (L) 95.42%
(“GDZ") (ote ) corporation
GDZ International Limited SRR
( fapz]) ) "=
Mr. Lu Wei Ding (“Mr. Lu”) ™3 Interest in controlled 396,000,000 (L) 95.42%
BESRKE ([BEE] ) W corporation
R AE R
Ms. Li Li (ote4) Interest of spouse 396,000,000 (L) 95.42%
B WEe BB s
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes:
(1) The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the shares.

2 Of the 396,000,000 shares, 300,000,000 are issued shares of the
Company, representing approximately 72.29% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company. The balance 96,000,000 shares is
the number of shares to be issued if Amber International, being the
sole bondholder of the convertible bond (“Convertible Bond”) in
the principle amount of HK$124,800,000 issued by the Company,
exercises in full the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Bond, which is considered interests of Amber International under the
SFO. For the information of the shareholders of the Company, it is
a term of the Convertible Bond that the maximum number of shares
that may be converted is limited to the extent that following such
conversion, the shares held by the public shareholders should not be
less than 25% of the then issued share capital of the Company.

(©)] These shares are held by Amber International, which is owned as to
90% by GDZ, which in turn is wholly owned by Mr. Lu. Therefore,
GDZ and Mr. Lu are deemed to be interested in these shares. The
remaining 10% of Amber International is owned by DUOU Investment
Co. Ltd, which is wholly owned by Mr. Chai Wei, a director of the
Company.

4) Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the said shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be
interested.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2011, the
Company has not been notified by any other persons
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which are required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as at the
date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2011, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a total of
284 employees, excluding 35 temporary staff (31
December 2010: 257, excluding 18 temporary staff).
The Group determines employees’ remuneration
according to industry practices, financial performance
and employees’ performance. The Group also provides
other fringe benefits such as insurance, medical benefits
and mandatory provident fund contributions with an
aim to retain talents on all levels who will make further
contributions to the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the relevant
Director’'s experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday, 1
June 2012. A notice convening the annual general
meeting will be published and despatched to the
shareholders of the Company in the manner as required
by the Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
during the following periods during which no transfers of
shares of the Company will be registered:

()  from Wednesday, 30 May 2012 to Friday, 1 June
2012 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 29 May 2012; and
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(Continued)

(i) from Thursday, 7 June 2012 to Friday, 8 June
2012 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend. In order to establish
entittements to the proposed final dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 6 June 2012.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the public information available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the public
float requirement as set out in the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of all the
independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Feng Li
Min, a non-executive Director. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the internal controls and
financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by KPMG who will retire and offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ding Guang Ping
Chairman, Board of Directors

23 March 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximize the
operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder
returns. The Company adopted sound governance and
disclosure practices and continued to upgrade internal
control system, strengthen risk control management and
reinforce the corporate governance structure.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions
of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) and the rules on the Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Rules”) as set out respectively in
Appendices 14 and 23 to the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2011.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

Throughout the vyear ended 31 December 2011,
the Board comprised seven directors, including two
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The following
sets out the composition of the Board, by category of
Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHAI Wei (President)
Mr. HU Xian Wei (resigned on 15 January 2012)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. DING Guang Ping (Chairman)
Mr. FENG Li Min
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)
Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin
Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xian Guo

The Board’'s composition demonstrates a balance of
core competence with regard to the business of the
Group so as to provide effective leadership and the
required expertise to the Group. The executive Directors
and senior management have extensive management
experience in the gas-fired power generation industry.
The biographical details and experience of the Directors
and senior management are set out on pages 23 to 29 of
this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Group and is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic  development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals and assumes
the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Group. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of
senior management.

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and
on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by business needs.
During the year ended 31 December 2011, seven Board
meetings, three Audit Committee meetings and one
Remuneration Committee meeting were convened.
Details of attendance of Board meetings of each of the
members of the Board are set out in “Attendance of
Individual Directors at Meetings” below.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings (Continued)

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each
Director at least 14 days prior to the meeting, whereby
the Directors can put forward his proposed items into
the agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board papers
are then circulated to the Directors 3 days before a
Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions. For other Board meetings,
reasonable notices are given.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board
at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-
executive Directors. The Company is of the view that
all the independent non-executive Directors meet the
guidelines for assessing independence as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

Chairman and President

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011 and up
to the date of this report, the Chairman and the President
of the Company are Mr. DING Guang Ping and Mr. CHAI
Wei respectively. The role of the Chairman is separate
from that of the President so as to delineate their
respective areas of responsibility.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development  directions
for the Group. The President is responsible for the
daily management of the business of the Group,
implementation of the policies, business objectives and
plans set by the Board and is accountable to the Board
for the overall operation of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors of the Company
is three years. Under the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of all Directors (whether executive
or non-executive) is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at each annual general meeting provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the Remuneration Committee on
18 June 2009 with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities.
The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin
and Mr. YAO Xian Guo and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. DING Guang Ping. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting
the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and
retaining directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group’s
business successfully. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for the development of a fair and
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration
policies for the Directors and senior management of
the Company and for determining their remuneration
packages.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

° formulation of remuneration policy for approval by
the Board;

o recommendation to the Board the policy and

structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management;
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

° determination of the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind and compensation payments;

° review and approval of the compensation
arrangements in connection with any loss or
termination of their office or appointment, or
dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive
Directors and senior management; and

° determination of the criteria for assessing employee
performance.

No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
the Company’s remuneration policies, the terms of the
service contracts and the performance of all executive
Directors and senior management. Details of attendance
of Remuneration Committee meeting of each of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are set out in
“Attendance of Individual Directors at Meetings” below.

Details of the emoluments of each Director, on a named
basis, are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has resolved to establish a Nomination
Committee on 1 April 2012 with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities. The Nomination Committee will comprise
of all the independent non-executive Directors, one non-
executive director, namely Mr. DING Guang Ping and one
executive director, namely Mr. CHAI Wei. The Nomination
Committee will be chaired by Mr. DING Guang Ping.

The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are:

° to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and make recommendations on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members, make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;

to assess the
Director;

independence of non-executive

make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

Before the establishment of the Nomination Committee,
all new appointments to the Board are considered by the
Board whose deliberations are based on the following
criteria:

possession of core competencies, including but not
limited to financial literacy, that are appropriate to
the Company’s business and complement the skills
and competencies of the existing Directors on the
Board;

ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties
and responsibilities effectively; and

possession of a good track record of experience at
a senior level in corporations/organizations.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee on 18 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit
Committee comprises all the independent non-executive
Directors and Mr. FENG Li Min, a non-executive Director.
Mr. TSE Chi Man is the chairman of the committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for
communication between the Directors and the external
auditors as regards their duties relating to, among other
things, financial and other reporting, internal controls,
external and internal audits and to assist the Board in
fulfilling its responsibilities by providing independent view
and supervision of financial reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the
Audit Committee have sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise or experience to discharge their
duties.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditor and
to approve the remuneration and terms of such
appointments;

o reviewing and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity;

o developing and implementing policies on the
engagement of external auditor for non-audit
services;

° monitoring the integrity of the financial statements,
annual and interim reports and the auditor’s report
to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial
position;

° reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices, financial controls, internal
controls and risk management systems;

o ensuring the management has performed its duty to
have an effective internal control system; and

° reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter
and any questions raised by the auditor to the
management and the management’s response.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Three meetings were held by the Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2011. The
committee reviewed, together with the management
and the external auditors, the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 and
for the six months ended 30 June 2011, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and
statutory compliance. In addition to reviewing the
Group’s internal control system, the committee also
reviewed the independence of the external auditors and
approved the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors. Details of attendance of Audit
Committee meetings of each of the members of the
Audit Committee are set out in “Attendance of Individual
Directors at Meetings” below.

ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT
MEETINGS

BEREES(#)

BE-_Z——F+T-_A=+—RHULEFE &
REZBERTT=ZREE HEEERIE
REM-—FAERATHE_T-—ZTF+ A
=+ HLEFERBE_ZE——FXA=T
BIEREANEEMBE®RE AEBFRHR
MEtERIEEPIANEEAREE - B
AARERNAREERFIN  BRZEGT
F AN AZBRAD 2 98 M N HE O ONEE A BAD
ZHERZTBIGER BRZBEEEKELRE
ERREBEEERNARBAN TIXENES
hEEZEBR] -

BRESHFEERER

The CG Code stipulates that the board should mest TEESTARTE EFGLEATHETE
regularly for at least 4 times a year at approximately 2RO EETMR - HEE— K o @R
quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual directors EEHEEERS FMEEEREZEZES
at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee eENBERENEOT
and the Audit Committee, respectively, is set forth in the
table below:
Meetings attended/Meetings held in 2011
—E-—-FEHESER CETER
Remuneration Audit
Name of director Board Committee Committee
ExpgE Exg ¥yMZEEE ERZEE
Mr. CHAI Wei 7/7 N/A N/A
RELE @A i@ A
Mr. HU Xian Wei 7/7 N/A N/A
HEETE I~ 3 T A
Mr. DING Guang Ping 4/7 11 N/A
THFEEE T E A
Mr. FENG Li Min 6/7 N/A 3/3
IR &E 38 A
Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin 6/7 1/1 3/3
SR SRS A
Mr. TSE Chi Man 7/7 N/A 3/3
A;EX L E 3
Mr. YAO Xian Guo 7/7 1/1 3/3
k5t B % A4

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHBERBIRA R
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, were
responsible for providing services in connection with
the review of the Group’s financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2011 and the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the total
remuneration in respect of review, audit and other
verification services provided by KPMG for the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,400,000 and the
Group had not engaged KPMG in the provision of any
non-audit services.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board
(which endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
KPMG, be re-appointed as the external auditors of the
Company for 2012.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects.
Management provides such explanation and information
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group and for
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results
in a timely manner within the time frame laid down in the
Listing Rules.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to safeguard shareholders’ investment and
the Group’s assets.

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. The Board is satisfied that, based on the
information supplied, coupled with its assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk
management processes are satisfactory for the nature
and size of the Group’s operations and business.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Amber Energy Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Amber Energy Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 51
to 144, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

BIRAERER2ARR

(RFAEHEEMERIZNBERRR)

EECEXFESIZ4EMERHALERER
AE([ERRAIDREMBAR(RBIES
WG BRE BERZZ—F
+ZAZ+—HRNEERA 7%%%&%5@
HEZBIFENGAEATENEER HRE®E
mFHRREERENER  URFTEEH
R E R EMH &R -

i

EEANGREMBHRREAENER

E>

E\ ﬂ%%o\ﬁ/i\ﬁﬁﬁgltaa-f |J;/\E
78 4 &) B R ﬁﬂ“#&%ﬁé,ﬁu&iﬁ% 1'%%3’\7
BRERETRBEAEERAANES EM‘*#&E‘%

N EERRRELR /\EM’X#&%ZRE’]W*B
THI BT - AEES T E R A EBRFFK
Har PTol B E R EE AR PR AL -

RBENEE

EENEERRBEESTNERYZERS
Eﬁﬁ#&%%’f%,wi AEERNERBBRRE
B BRIEASNTER M A% - BEFH A
BENAR  HEMEBALTAEHAERE

M EME -

FEECREBEEESHAMASHM BT ERE
EAETERZ RFEAUBREFETER
ME URBRWTER WEERERA
MHBREEEFAEEMNERNERRAL -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B Z AR S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B —F——F+_A=+—HIFE

2011
e

Note RMB’000
Y 5 AR®T R

Turnover EER 4 720,412 654,315
Operating expenses KX
Fuel consumption BRELE (547,576)
Depreciation and amortisation & K (48,904)
Repairs and maintenance mERRE (1,453)
Personnel costs A B AR 5(ii) (21,195)
Administrative expenses TR X (15,236)
Sales related taxes SHE MR A (5,233)
Other operating expenses HthgE&EMAx (3,264)
Operating|profit S (b= YR
Finance income B 75 WA 3,890
Finance costs B (44,886)
Net finance costs ¢ MERAER  5() (40,996)
Other netincome ¢ Hpe A ¥ 6 _ 1,367
Profit before taxation R B A0 35 5 37,922
Tax expense i I8 B 2 7 (1,882)
Profit attributable to equity FRARADTEZRE

shareholders of the Company  FE{8 & 7

for the year
Other comprehensive income FREMZ2EEK A

for the year (after tax and (BRBLREH

reclassification adjustment): DHEAEE) 11
Exchange differences on BREFINEE R A

translation of financial statements B4 7 i 5% &9 E ¥, = 58

of overseas subsidiaries (2,234)
Total comprehensive income FRAXQABIERZRR

attributable to equity EEEZEWBALE

shareholders of the Company

for the year
Basic earnings BREXZF

per share (RMB) (AR ) 12
Diluted earnings BREEZF

per share (RMB) (AR% ) 12
The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these F59E BB ERZEMHRE

&) 4 75 AR R A IR

financial statements. Details of dividends payable to
equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the
profit for the year are set out in note 23(d).

144
o F A g A i A AR A
TIEH

R B FE23(d) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF ' FINANCIAL POSITION
fr B B AR

At 31 December 2011
R-ZF——F+=A=1—H

2011 2010

el T TF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5% AR% T NS

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E RN 13 808,977 803,645
Lease prepayments EEE 14 27,670 28,483
_________ 836,647 o ?%2_,1_262 i
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 7,812 8,978
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 & E b3R8 16 84,650 73,073
Tax recoverable CIRLQEIR TR 7,643 3,375
Pledged deposits BEEBER 17 47,084 132,513
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 18 168,709 174,881
________ 315,898 L _39_2_,8;29 i
Current liabilities REBAE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 244,000 239,000
Trade and other payables FETE 5 K& H b 5k I18 21 43,816 221,598
______ 287,816 L flG_O_,5_9§ i
Net current assets/(liabilities) _ AEBHE (BE)F® _______ iy (67.778)
Total assets less current MEERRBESE
liabilites 864,729 o _7624_,3_5(_) i
Non-current liabilities IRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 239,000 247,700
Convertible bonds AEiRES 20 71,818 =
Long-term payables KHE IR 22 18,503 22,298
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMIBAE 7(i)(c) 4,023 2,141
333,344 272,139
Net assets EEFEE 531,385 492,211

F1MBEMENTAZEY BHRE—

The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these
financial statements.

oK
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
rE M AR AR ()

At 31 December 2011
R-F——F+-_HA=+—H

2011

o

Note RMB’000
il AR%TR

23(b) 36,582
494,803

Capital and reserves EXR#EE

Share capital [N

Reserves 1

Total equity attributable to ERAERRR
equity shareholders LR

of the Company

531,385

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 23 March 2012.

Chai Wei
E -
Director

EF

The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these
financial statements.

2010
—E-FF
RMB’000
AREF T

36,582
455,629

492,211

REFeN _TE——_F="A_+=BHER

RIEET -

Feng Limin
BIR
Director

EF

FOOEFIMEFMEMERZETMIEHREK —

B e
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

N 5] IS AR 3R

At 31 December 2011
R-F——F+ZA=+—H

2011 2010
ZE — — F ek
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3E AR®E T NGB
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE = 50
Investment in subsidiaries KEKE R A 15 358,044 358,044
________________________________________ 358,044 L _35_8_,0_94_1 i
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables e E 5 & E fib 58 16 179,514 45,636
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREFEED 18 75,219 103,495
________________________________________ 254,733 L _1{9_,1_31_ i
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables _ _ _ _ _ | RAEARAMRE _____21_ 15,399 NRNICGE
Netcurrentassets ______ABHEERE ___________ 239,334 PREICHIS
Total assets less MEERRBAER
__current liabilites 597,378 SR
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible bonds AlERES 20 71,818 =
71,818 —
Net assets BEEFE 525,560 495,721
Capital and reserves EAXRf#EE 23(a)
Share capital fi% 2% 36,582 36,582
Reserves ke 488,978 459,139
Total equity 48R % 525,560 495,721
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEEEN= —HE=AZ+t=HHAER
directors on 23 March 2012. AT
Chai Wei Feng Limin
Pt EIYR
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these FOOR4AEFTEM T RAZ TN B HRE — 3
financial statements. 7 e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREEX

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE—_F——F+ _HA=+—HIFEF

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FAARERRRER
Statutory
Share Share Capital Merger surplus Translation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity
EE
BRE  ROEE EAEE SHREE BEHEE  EXRHFE  REEA aEs
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

M ARBTL ARBTRT ARETR ARETR AREBTT ARETRL ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2010 RZB-%F
-B-8 36,582 92,724 (1,876) 306,883 19,724 (45) 6,897 460,889
Changes in equity for —Z2-%%
2010: BE%2H:
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - 40915 40915
Other comprehensive Hb2EKBA
income 1 - - - - - (3,387) - (3,387)
Total comprehensive FREARAEE
income for the year - - - - - (3,387) 40,915 37,528
Dividends to equity BaRERS
shareholders 23(d) - - - - - - (6,200) (6,206)
Appropriation to reserves B E 23(c)v) - - - - 5,166 = (5,166) =
At 31 December 2010 R-B-%F
+-A=+-H 36,582 92,724 (1,876) 306,883 24,890 (3,432) 36,440 492,211
The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these FEOT 144 B FIE M F A EM R T — I

N

financial statements. )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

ﬁl‘l‘l

BE—F——F

Note
B %
At 1 January 2011 R=Z--5-F-H
Changes in equity for —Z——4
2011: RS
Profit for the year FR&EF
Other comprehensive Hip2EHBA
income 11
Total comprehensive FRZENANEER
income for the year
Dividends to equity BaRRR S
shareholders 23(d)
Equity component of AEARSNERDS
convertible bonds 20
Appropriation to reserves & % 28(c)v)
At 31 December 2011 R-B——%
+=ZA=+-H

ReEZSER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
A=+ —HIFE

Share
capital

&
RMB’000
ARBTR

36,582

36,582

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRERRREN

Share
premium

K iaE
RMB’000
ARBTR

92,724

92,724

The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these
financial statements.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED RIAGERBIRA A

Capital
reserve

N1
RMB’000
ARBTR

(1,876)

24,189

Merger
reserve

RO
RMB'000
ARBTR

306,883

306,883

ARBTR

Statutory
surplus
reserve

EE

BHAfE

RMB’000

Translation
reserve

B
RMB’000
ARBTR

24,890 (3,432)

(2,234)

(2,234)

4,541

29,431

(5,666)

FH9E 144 B FT & i 55 A%

N

)

S5
=T

EETE
earnings

RERF
RMB’000
ARBTR

36,440

36,040

(20,697)

(4,541)

47,242

Total
equity

AR
RMB’000
ARBTR

492,211

531,385

s mR — B



For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE—FT——F+-_A=+—HIFE

Note
B 3T
Cash flows from operating RETEHMBRENE
activities
Profit for the year FREF
Adjustments for: KARIEE
Depreciation of plant, property and #1% - B &E &
equipment RETE 5(iii)
Amortisation of lease prepayments T8 1~ 8 & 4 £ 5(ii)
Net finance costs B %5 P 2N 5 RR 5(i)
Net gain on disposal of property, HEW¥E - BENMRKRE
plant and equipment W s 558
Net loss on disposal of lease BEEBEMNES
prepayments (RN -t
Tax expenses i 18 7 2
Change in inventories FEIER
Change in trade and FEW B 5 & B th FIF G R
other receivables
Change in trade and other payables [E it & 5 K E {th 3k 18 18
Cash (used in)/generated from & T8 (FA) FEHEE
operating activities
Interest paid 25 B
Taxes paid BT IE
Net cash (used in)/from RETEE (A B
operating activities __BRem®sm
Cash flows from investing RETBESRERE
activities
Interest received 2 A B
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  BEKKE
property, plant and equipment Ffr 15 338
Proceeds from disposal of lease & & B & P15 508
prepayments
Acquisition of property, plant and WEME  KE L& E
equipment
The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these E59F F144
financial statements. B o

2011
—g-—%
RMB’000
ARETF 7

36,040

48,091
813
40,996

)

1,882
127,820
1,166
28,222
(182,807)

(25,599)

(44,436)
(4,268)

(74,303)

(97,818)

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

2010
—E-FF
RMB’000
AR®ET T

40,915

46,836
825
40,130
(294)

171
2,141

130,724
(5,024)
(38,417)
98,397
185,680
(41,723)

(243)

143,714

2,519
785
1,217

(16,153)

LM ERZET B RER —
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
meBHTRERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE—T——F+_A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
=t Beb -l — T —TF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3T AR T BN R
Net cash used in investing RETEE
_activities _ ____________ RRER® ___________ (93,846) IIRICER]
Cash flows from financing METHRSRESRE
activities
Proceeds from borrowings EEMERE 473,000 264,000
Proceeds from the issue of TR iR TE o
convertible bonds, net of Fr 13 3k 18
transaction costs E 4T F‘f\ % [N 100,945 —
Repayment of borrowings BEEEE (476,700) (857,300)
Change in pledged deposits B i 48 77 2 85,429 (43,013)
Dividends paid BT B 23(d) (20,697) (6,206)
Net cash from/(used in) BMEEBRAE(FTH)
_ financing activities _ __ ___ __ RERE L ___ Ranel __ _(142519)
Net decrease incashandcash HRERREZEY
equivalents AL FE (6,172) (10,437)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—H—B®
1 January ReRBEEeEEY 174,881 185,318
Cash and cash equivalentsat R+=-BA=+—HH
31 December ReRESEEY 168,709 174,881
The notes on pages 59 to 144 form part of these FEOERFAAEFEMN T AZXSE T EREKT —
financial statements. LA o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 76 45 % ) =%

REPORTING ENTITY AND BACKGROUND
INFORMATION

Amber Energy Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10
July 2009 (the “Listing”).

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2011 of the Company
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”). The principal
activities of the Group are the development,
operation and management of power plants.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and related
Interpretations, promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note
2(e) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis wused in the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the
functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries
located in the PRC. All financial information
presented in RMB has been rounded to the
nearest thousand, except when otherwise
indicated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

(Continued)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and
in any future periods affected.

Notes 7, 20 and 24 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to deferred tax liabilities, convertible bonds
and the fair value of financial instruments.
Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses for trade and
other receivables

Impairment losses for trade and other
receivables are assessed and provided
based on the management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level
of judgement is exercised by the
management when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of
each individual customer. Any increase
or decrease in the impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts would affect
profit or loss in future years.

(ii) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment (other
than major generator equipment) are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual
value. Major generator equipment which
can be identified in relation to specific
production process are depreciated by
reference to the expected production
volume of these generator equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

(e)

(Continued)

(ij) Depreciation (Continued)
The management reviews annually the
expected production volume of major
generator equipment, and the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if
any. The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of
amendments to [IFRSs and one new
Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

IAS 24 (revised 2009),
disclosures

Related party

° Consequential amendment to IFRS 8,

Operating segments

° Improvements to IFRSs (2010)

° IFRIC 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

The consequential amendment to IFRS 8
has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements as they were consistent
with policies already adopted by the Group.
IFRIC 19 has not yet had a material impact
on the Group’s financial statements as these
changes will first be effective as and when
the Group enters a relevant transaction (for
example, a debt for equity swap).

The impacts of these developments are
discussed below:

o IAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the
definition of a related party. As a
result, the Group has re-assessed the
identification of related parties and
concluded that the revised definition
does not have any material impact on
the Group’s related party disclosures in
the current and previous periods. IAS 24
(revised 2009) also introduces modified
disclosure requirements for government-
related entities. This does not impact
the Group because the Group is not a
government-related entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies

(Continued)

° Improvements to IFRSs (2010)
omnibus standard introduces a
number of amendments to the
disclosure requirements in IFRS 7,
Financial  instruments:  Disclosures.

(f)

The disclosures about the Group’s
financial instruments in note 24 have
been conformed to the amended
disclosure requirements. These
amendments do not have any material
impact on the classification, recognition
and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the Group’s financial
statements in the current and previous
periods.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. Control exists when the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity

transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Goodwill (Continued)

(h)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of
CGU, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Foreign currency
(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated to the respective functional
currencies of the companies comprising
the Group at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at
the reporting date are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange
rate at that date. The foreign currency
gain or loss on monetary items is the
difference between amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of
the year, adjusted for effective interest
and payments during the vyear, and
the amortised cost in foreign currency
translated at the exchange rate at the
end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Foreign currency (Continued)

0]

Foreign currency transactions
(Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in  foreign currencies
that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the date that
the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items in a foreign currency that
are measured based on historical cost
are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising
on retranslation are recognized in
profit or loss, except for the following
differences which are recognised in other
comprehensive income arising on the
retranslation of:

— available-for-sale equity
investments (except on impairment
in which case foreign currency
differences that have been
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or
loss);

— a financial liability designated as a
hedge of the net investment in a
foreign operation to the extent that
the hedge is effective; or

— qualifying cash flow hedges to the
extent the hedge is effective.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Foreign currency (Continued)

(i)

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations, including goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated to RMB at exchange
rates at the reporting date. The income
and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to RMB at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions.

Foreign  currency differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, and presented in the foreign
currency translation reserve (translation
reserve) in equity.

When the settlement of a monetary item
receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation is neither planned nor likely in
the foreseeable future, foreign currency
gains and losses arising from such item
are considered to form part of a net
investment in the foreign operation and
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, and presented in the translation
reserve in equity.

(i) Financial instruments

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans
and receivables on the date that they
are originated. All other financial assets
are recognised initially on the trade
date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

0]

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred. Any interest
in transferred financial assets that is
created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or
liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-
derivative financial assets: loans and
receivables.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

0]

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment
losses (see note 2(n)).

Loans and receivables comprise cash
and cash equivalents, and trade and
other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash balances and call deposits with
maturities of three months or less from
the acquisition date that are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in their
fair value, and are used by the Group
in the management of its short-term
commitments.

2

BEREFTHEE)
(i) €&WMIEE)

(i) HTEZTHEEE)

BERRERRE

ERRERZBAENERD
Gt EREBEEAEETHA
ETNRHNEREE %5
BEOSEAFEMBEERE
ERBGEAER - Y HHER
% BERLREUZRBEBRAE
B FI) & S i GH K AN R R B
EEsrE (R FE2n)) °

EXRREREFERSERE M
ReEBYEERES RE
i FRIR ©

BehBReEEMERRAR
BRI B AUWE RS
B ATE=EA 2FE

SEEHAENEHRER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 =—Z——§EH&

071



o772

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises debt
securities issued and subordinated
liabilities on the date that they are
originated. All other financial liabilities
are recognised initially on the trade
date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial
liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged, cancelled or expired.

The Group classifies non-derivative
financial liabilities into the other financial
liabilities  category. Such financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise loans
and borrowings, and trade and other
payables, convertible bonds and long-
term payables.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity,
net of any tax effects.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEBARGIHBEMSE)
(Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) (i) &SI EZ)

(iv) Convertible bonds (iv) ATEE#%E*

Convertible bonds that can be converted
to equity share capital at the option of
the holder, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and
the value of the consideration that would
be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial  recognition the liability
component of the convertible bonds
is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market
rate of interest applicable at the time
of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option.
Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability
component is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The interest
expense recognised in profit or loss
on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the bond is
converted or redeemed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
(iv) Convertible bonds

If the bond is converted, the capital
reserve, together with the carrying
amount of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.
If the bond is redeemed, the capital
reserve is released directly to retained
profits.

(i) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the following:

o the cost of materials and direct
labour;

° any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to a working
condition for their intended use;

° when the Group has an obligation
to remove the asset or restore the
site, an estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they
are located; and

° capitalised borrowing costs.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)
(i) Recognition and measurement

(ii)

(iii)

(Continued)

Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

Any gain and loss on disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment
(calculated as the difference between
the net proceeds from disposal and
the carrying amount of the item) is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only when it is probable that the future
economic  benefits associated  with
the expenditure will flow to the Group.
Ongoing repairs and maintenance is
expensed as incurred.

Depreciation

ltems of property, plant and equipment
other than major generator equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis
in profit or loss over the estimated useful
lives of each component. Leased assets
are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives unless it
is reasonably certain that the Group will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease
term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREFEHXE
(Continued)
(i) Property, plant and equipment () W¥E- -BERZEE)
(Continued)

(iii) #rE&E (&)

(iiij) Depreciation (Continued)

0786

Major  generator equipment  which
can be identified in relation to specific
production process is depreciated by
reference to the expected production
volume of these generator equipment,
since this most closely reflects the
expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in
the asset.

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated from the date that they
are installed and are ready for use,
or in respect of internally constructed
assets, from the date that the asset is
completed and ready for use.

The estimated useful lives and expected
production volume for the current and
comparative years of significant items
of property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Buildings and plants 30 years
Major generator equipment 80,000-
120,000

hours

Other machinery 5-32 years
Motor vehicles, furniture, 5-10 years

fixtures, equipment and
others

Depreciation methods, useful lives,
expected production volume and
residual values are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

o] e E A B (E B A E T Fr AR
AHRAUBRERBLELRS
MERHESRE  JTELE
RAE R R B E AR REEN
HHAEMBEHELS -

ME- -BEEREERBEAX
KEAAHEERE BRBITE
MR E B E B TR A I A i
EREBRRITE -

ME - -BEERBOHEER
BRAERLEBREFEEN MGG

AFERAFHRBHESENT :
BFRBE 304
FERERH 80,000%
120,000/  FF
H 1% 25 5E32%F
B R 5E10%F
HE BREK
HA

FERE FAERAFEH A
HEEMHGEEN SRS
BT AR (ER) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

0

(m)

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent
the cost of land use rights paid to PRC
government authorities. Lease prepayments
are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(n)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the respective
periods of the rights.

Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.
On initial recognition, the leased asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lower
of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the asset is accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.

Other leases are operating leases and are
not recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventories is based on the first-in-first-out
principle, and includes expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs, and other costs incurred
in bringing them to their existing location
and condition. In the case of manufactured
inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production
overheads based on normal operating
capacity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Inventories (Continued)

(n)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses.

Impairment

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not classified as at fair
value through profit or loss is assessed
at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that loss
event(s) had an impact effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset
that can be estimated reliably.

Objective  evidence that financial
assets are impaired includes default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring
of an amount due to the Group on
terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise, indications that a
debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy,
adverse changes in the payment status
of borrowers or issuers, economic
conditions that correlate with defaults
or the disappearance of an active
market for a security. In addition, for
an investment in an equity security, a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost is objective evidence
of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 76 45 % ) =%

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers evidence of
impairment for financial assets measured
at amortised cost (loans and receivables)
at both a specific asset and collective
level. All individually significant assets
are assessed for specific impairment.
Those found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed
for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Assets
that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by
grouping together assets with similar risk
characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment,
the Group uses historical trends of
the probability of default, the timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss
incurred, adjusted for management’s
judgement as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are
such that the actual losses are likely to
be greater or less than suggested by
historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a
financial asset measured at amortised
cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate. Losses are
recognised in profit or loss and reflected
in an allowance account against
receivables. Interest on the impaired
asset continues to be recognised. When
an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised causes the amount
of impairment loss to decrease, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment (Continued)
(i) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
non-financial assets, inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
Subject to an operating segment
ceiling test, CGUs to which goodwill
has been allocated are aggregated
so that the level at which impairment
testing is performed reflects the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill
acquired in a business combination is
allocated to groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of
combination.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment  losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a

pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed. For other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Impairment (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill,
available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period
relates. Consequently, if the fair value
of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the
annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations
are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for
the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus if the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result or of past
service provided by the employee, and
the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Defined contribution retirement
plan

Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC, employees of the
Group participate in the social insurance
system established and managed by
government organisations. The Group
makes social insurance contributions,
including contributions to basic pension
insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related
injury insurance, maternity insurance and
etc., as well as contributions to housing
fund, at the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government
for the benefit of its employees. The
social insurance and housing fund
contributions are recognised as part of
the cost of assets or charged to profit or
loss on an accrual basis.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a
past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding
of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue from sales of electricity is recognised
upon the transmission of electric power to the
power grid companies, as determined based
on the volume of electric power transmitted
and the applicable fixed tariff rates agreed
with  the respective electric power grid
companies periodically.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised initially
as deferred income at fair value when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions associated with the grant, and
are then recognised in profit or loss as other
income on a systematic basis over the useful
life of the asset.

Grant that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised in profit or
loss as other income on a systematic basis
in the periods in which the expenses are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Lease payments

Payment made under operating leases
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over
the term of the lease.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income
and foreign currency gains. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using
the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense
on borrowings, bank charges and foreign
currency losses and unwinding of the discount
on provisions. Borrowing costs that are
not directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying
asset are recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis as either finance
income or finance cost depending on whether
foreign currency movements are in a net gain
or net loss position.

Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in equity or
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREFEHXE

(Continued)

(u) Tax (Continued) () BHEE)
Current tax is the expected tax payable or BEVEAT B 38 F N IE R R A KB 1B
receivable on the taxable income or loss WTE B E RS E B IE - 1R WE B
for the year, using tax rates enacted or HERIEREENTHEGTE - I
substantively enacted at the reporting date, RBTFENEETIBIELAE -
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect FEB BN EAFLIH 75 B HE B R AR B B 2L
of previous years. Current tax payable also WEMFTEESRE -

includes any tax liability arising from the
declaration of dividends.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of RERIERBE RS BERERZ7
temporary differences between the carrying BEERBECREEEMARIES
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial M EREZRER - T T3I%E
reporting purposes and amounts used BREENRIE

for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

e temporary differences on the initial o HEBRAMUNINZFIHIFE
recognition of assets or liabilities in SEEEXNERB DN KEB
a transaction that is not a business BrEENBEVEERE
combination and that affects neither A ERER

accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

e temporary differences related to o BEMRKMEBARZEEMT
investments in subsidiaries to the extent AP BER Al R i R 5 B /) &
that it is probable that they will not REE: K

reverse in the foreseeable future; and

e taxable temporary differences arising on s UNBEREEBELANERY
the initial recognition of goodwill. ER=E-

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 3 RE 5 TR AR $R T Iy 2= FE 5 O] 7R AR

that are expected to be applied to temporary HERAZMEFE  AUREEHE

differences when they reverse, using tax HREREHENRETE -

rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 76 45 % ) =%

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

EREHBEE)

(u) Tax (Continued) (v BEE)

In determining the amount of current and
deferred tax the Group takes into account the
impact of uncertain tax positions and whether
additional taxes and interest may be due.
The Group believes that its accruals for tax
liabilities are adequate for all open tax years
based on its assessment of many factors,
including interpretations of tax law and
prior experience. This assessment relies on
estimates and assumptions and may involve
a series of judgements about future events.
New information may become available that
causes the Group to change its judgement
regarding the adequacy of existing tax
liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will
impact tax expense in the period that such as
a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they
relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority
on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences, to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

BERHMERERIAR  AKEG
AT BF BRI 75 K 0 B BB 91 A TR K A
EETRIMNTE - AREERHK
EHBRBMATEREFELZEAEN
AR AR RRBARER
AEHABRRARFEE - Kb
BN G RER  HEFRER
KEMFE— R HIE - AEE A AL
ESHEN ZFAMRANEER
BERREHE  MHBEEEDH K
FEELERRTEHENRIERF
¥ o

8 B A TE R BATTHE A 3K 55 B HA A IR
BEREE BRFREBEREES
Al — BB AR — ERITE R
B RIBER - HE—H
AERAFEEELERRHARE
LREESRBERRAEERAE
M RERHEEBABKRNTRIES
B AEHEERAEENRARE -

EIEFRIRE R KA BRI
AEME R ZERR R AHIAE
1B BEE R LA R E R E R
R-NERSEHRIELEHRE
= WA 2 BN S T B A e
BAIF AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss
in the year in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalised as
being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of qualifying asset commences
when expenditures for the asset are being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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EX

(v)

(w)

(x)

SR BUR (#)

[ g=\
RERERMEERSEE -

BERA
EERARELFERREH
W T RARRKE T ERE R G
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HREBHEBARSN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x) Segment reporting (Continued)

(v)

Individually ~material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(b) has significant influence over the
Group; or

() is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(@ the entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

2 EXEFEE@#E)

(x)

(v)

2 AR E (F)

EM S - BRIED B ABAEEL
BRI EEmRRBEE -
TETFEE  FTPEEKER
FA1E 7y $H 7 an Sk B AR TS RO T3 05 A
REEREMEE T @MU - A
BERKEDHTIESAHAE - @
BIZEERMEEDE » A Lt
REBAZRE - QIR A HEHE ©

HER

() —BATHEERHBENTAS
LA 15 1 BN AR /5 7N 5% [ 1) 78
w5

(@ = #il 2k R Hl AN &
3

) HAKEAEEAFTE
=

) RAKBXAKBEHR
ANEEEEASR -

(i) TEATEMEHENERR
RASENREED

(@ ZEBHEAKESR—
SEMKERAE
[S/NNCIIR = TS E
EWBRRZHEMEEH
&)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(b)

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the Group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(i); or

a person identified in ()@ has
significant  influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person

in their dealings with the entity.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

Certain of the Group’s accounting policies and
disclosures require the determination of fair value,
for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities. Fair values have been determined for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes based
on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.

(@) Trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective fair
values due to the short maturities of these
instruments.

(b) Interest-bearing borrowings

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings approximate their fair values
based on the borrowing rates currently
available for bank loans with similar terms and
maturity.

(c) Other non-derivative financial liabilities

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure
purposes, is calculated based on the present
value of future principal and interest cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of
interest at the reporting date. In respect of
the liability component of convertible bonds,
the market rate of interest is determined by
reference to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option.

BERXFE
AEEETEHBRRRBEEREAETE
TREFEREERBENAFE -2
FEERBATHEEEAEAER,
IWERE - BERQFEMELREA
HMEREERABRATERENEGHRE
EXABENFEME -

(a)

(b)

(c)

BREZERAMRELEENES
K H 50"
ZEeREENABEREHAZ
B At b TAMKREERELR
FEMESE -

SFEEE
REGEA MBI HAEENRITER
BRERMNEENXE 5 8ME
EMREEREAFEMBS °

Ht kT emas
BEERERZNRAFE  REXR
KA RNBREMELBE B H
MM SN ERERNRESE - A8
BEFZABRONTSEMNELE
EHBENFABAEETE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

4

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

Turnover represents revenue from the sale of
electricity to power grid companies.

Segment reporting

The most senior executive management have
identified four operating segments, which are
the four power plants, namely:

° Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power
Co., Ltd. (“Anji Power Plant”);

o Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd, originally
named Zhejiang De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“De-Neng
Power Plant”);

o Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Jing-Xing
Power Plant”); and

° Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Blue Sky
Power Plant”).

The most senior executive management
are of the view that these four operating
segments contribute to the entire revenue
of the Group and should be aggregated to
a single reportable segment of the Group,
power segment, for financial reporting
purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes, the
type of class of customers and the regulatory
environment.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

4

(b)
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NCIAL STATEMENTS

4  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 EEERDIBHEE)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) PEHREE)

DEMEERRMBENEE B¢
BENMRBEE WIABRERAEMD

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception

of other corporate assets. Segment liabilities XEE - pEAEBREENSHH
include trade creditors, accruals and bills HETDHELENEHEE BT E
payable attributable to sales activities of RARENEBUARENDHBEEE
the power segment, and bank borrowings EMIRITEE  HTEEEMNLE

FASC

managed directly by the power segment, with

the exception of corporate expense payables.

(i) Reconciliations of reportable () ZEHEDHEXE - BF &
EREEHK

segment turnover, profit, assets
and liabilities

2011 2010

=Bl —T—TF

Turnover S RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%E T N R

Reportable segment turnover EWMDHEERE 720,412 654,315
Consolidated turnover A EER 720,412 654,315
2011 2010

= aa T =7

Profit i A RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB ARETT

Reportable segment profit 2o =B A 47,617 54,250
Unallocated corporate expenses k7 Bt > %5 (9,695) (11,194)
Consolidated profit before taxation 41 & % %t A1 3 7 37,922 43,056
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥ 7= MY

4  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable
segment turnover, profit, assets
and liabilities (Continued)

i

(b)

EXBEED

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets EWMHEEE
Other corporate assets HmMmbEEE
Consolidated total assets HeEBEEME

Liabilities =R

Reportable segment liabilities
Corporate expense payables EAtERY

Consolidated total liabilities LeBaEes

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

Dkt

2 AR E (F)
() ZEHTEEXRE  BF &

B¥R & ()

EREEHKE)

2011
—E——F
RMB’000
AR®TR

1,076,376
76,169

1,152,545

2011
—E2——F
RMB’000
ARBT T

536,371
84,789

621,160

2010
—E—FF
RMB’000
AREFIT

1,120,702
104,246

1,224,948

2010
—E—ZF
RMB’000
ARET T

726,204
6,533

732,737



PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(i) Net finance costs

BR Bt A1 % Al

BRBAENE MR (GEA)

(i) B FHE
2011
—_E——F
RMB’000
AR TR

(3,774)
(116)

(3,890)

44,436

450

44,886

Interest income MEF X

Net foreign exchange gain HME W 532 05 7R

Financial income | MgmRA
Interest expenses F B R

Net foreign exchange loss SNEBERIFRE

Bank charges R17E A

Financialcost —f mgHRAs
Net finance costs BY TS A AN VR R

40,996

(ii) Personnel costs

(i) EIKA
2011
—_E——F
RMB’000
AR TR

Wages, salaries and other benefits ¥4 ~ T & & H 43 7l
Contribution to defined contribution & %8 {it X5+ 21 89 it &

plan

20,052

1,143

21,195

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

2010
—2—FF
RMB’000
ARET T

2010
—E—FF

RMB’000
AE®BT T
20,684

974

21,658
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(ii) Personnel costs (Continued)

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits all the
pension fund contributions to the respective
social security offices, which are responsible
for the payments and liabilities relating to the
pension funds. The Group has no obligation
for payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of employees other than
the contributions described above.

The Group also operates a defined
contribution  Mandatory  Provident  Fund
retirement  benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees employed by the Company in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

o)

BB AR R ()
(i) ETRA(#H

AEE2EGEBRTLEHRK
T REBEEBERESHRT  A%5H
REBFHER -AKERESLARRES
B 2R AEHEHR - MELE
WERAAERASHBONRRL
B o B B3R5 AEE Y &
AR BIR IR B B AR IR 1R 48 AU A 5K
MEE -

7N E IR AR I 08 B M R AR 2 R8I R
Bl RARRRBAERANEZERE
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

BRI A& A ()

(iii) Other items (iii) HMEAE
2011 2010
= PN —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T NGB
Operating lease charges KEHE 1,249 1,277
Gain on disposal of plant, property &K E -
and equipment B (2 (294)
Amortisation R 813 825
Depreciation e 48,091 46,836
Auditor’s remuneration % 8L R B &
— audit services — R 1,113 1,183
OTHER NET INCOME H Uk A E 28
2011 2010
=l T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NG S
Government grants BT #8 Bh 1,367 854
Others Hi - 500
Total FEEE] 1,354

The Group was awarded unconditional government
grants amounting to RMB1,367,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (2010: RMB854,000).

All government grants were given as recognition of
the Group’s contribution to the development of the
local economy.

rEEHEZE_ZTE——F+_A=+—
AEFEEEKRMEBRTMMARE
1,367,000 L(Z T —ZFF : ARK
854,0007T) °

FrE BT MAE S RE AR B E R
ZRABMRBA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

7 TAXES 7 WBiE
() Income tax in the consolidated () #E2EBWARANMABHRE:
statement of comprehensive income
represents:
2011 2010
el T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N R
Current tax B HA %t 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax RREMEMREHR 8,454 5,150
Income tax credit Frig i ® (8,454) (5,150
Deferred tax EZEB A
Origination of temporary TR ERENESE
differences
— Dividend withholding tax — REFEMH 2,141
Total income tax expense in REE2EKRAXD
the consolidated statement of Frisfim = %8
comprehensive income 2,141

0S8

(a)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made for the subsidiaries
located in Hong Kong as these
subsidiaries did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: Nil).

The provision for PRC income tax is
based on the respective Corporate
Income Tax rates applicable to the
subsidiaries located in the PRC as
determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

@ RERSBHESHORAFZE
B NS BB ESMNEMFH
EHREMER -

(b) 2 _ET—-—F+t A
St+—BLEEE - BREFE
B AR EAMMNE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

7  TAXES (Continued)

(i)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
represents: (Continued)

(©)

(Continued)

According to the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“New Tax Law”) which took effect on 1
January 2008, the applicable tax rates
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
have been unified at 25%. Pursuant to
the transitional arrangements under the
New Tax Law, the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC will continue to enjoy the
tax holiday previously granted prior to
the enactment of the New Tax Law, i.e.
tax exemption for two years followed by
50% reduction in the applicable income
tax rate for three years. Thereafter, these
subsidiaries are subject to the unified
rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, 5%
withholding tax is levied on foreign
investor in  respect of dividend
distributions arising from a foreign
investment enterprise’s profit earned
after 1 January 2008. Deferred tax
liabilities of RMB1,882,000 have been
recognised for the profits earned by
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
RMB2,141,000).

Pursuant to the relevant PRC tax law
and regulations, the Group was granted
an income tax credit of RMB8,454,000
for purchases of domestic equipment for
production (2010: RMB5,150,000).

7 WEE

) SEEZEVRARANAEHIE :

(%)

(©

(%)

RE_ZZENF-A—HE
ERE R EARKME DX
FEREATHBED A%
B o B BT A A R B X
B — B25% ° RIEH AR
BERY AEEDBENE
NGIE SR TR K
EERNMFRBARER
“FERMEBHRER ¥ E
B ZRAIRE| - R25% M
i

BEBEFHE IEKEEER
RN RELER=ZZTEN
F— A — B A% T BEUE A
ELENRE D IREH E5%
BMBEHNHR ERAEEF
ENBRARABE_T——F
+_ A=+t B UFEMK
BEEMNEREEHREARE
AR#1,882,000T(ZE—F
£ AR¥2,141,0007T) °

BRI AR BB E ROER
AEBR _-_T——FEEHR
EXEXEMERSHER
ARS8 4540007 (ZE—F
F : AR¥5,150,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

7  TAXES (Continued) 7 BEE)
(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense (i) HEARRFTENHRERAIHESE
and accounting profit at applicable tax aTom R E R -
rate:

2011 2010
el T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T NS

Profit before taxation & B3 A 37,922 43,056
Notional tax on profit before BRIEEAISEM S BE -

taxation, calculated at 25% #25%5T & 9,481 10,764
Effect of different tax rates WEBARERAZ

applicable to subsidiaries FTRMENTE (1,726) (6,555)
Tax effect of non-deductible AAMBRE 2

expenses HIEZE 699 941
Income tax credit RS ® (8,454) (5,150)
Withholding tax on profits retained & B ¥ /& 2 &) (R 88 & F1) AY

by PRC subsidiaries A 1,882 2,141
Actual tax expense ERMREBEMALZ 1,882 2,141
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EFEME
Directors’ remuneration disclosed  pursuant BEFEEARKAIEICIHEENES
to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies T

Ordinance is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-E—-F+ZA=+—HLEFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses contributions
e
BHR BRGTE
EZNHE /B B 15764 H& At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%BTn AR%TR AR%TR AR%¥Trn

Executive directors  #H{TES

Mr. Chai Wei SERE

Mr. Hu Xianwei HEREE
(resigned on (R=ZE—ZF
15 January 2012) —ATAaH

RAE)

Non-executive FHTES
directors

Mr. Feng Limin HURRE

Mr. Ding Guangping THERE

Independent non- BUHTES
executive directors

Mr. Zhang Shoulin RFMEAE

Mr. Tse Chi Man e

Mr. Yao Xianguo BhE Bl A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME(#)

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE_T TF+_A=+"RAILFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e
=2 8L & RIRGHE
EEHe EPAm BBEA R it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTT AREMTT ARBTRE ARBTR

Executive directors #HITESE

Mr. Chai Wei LEAE - 669 83 27 779
Mr. Hu Xianwei R LA — 308 111 27 446
Non-executive EHTES

directors
Mr. Feng Limin B R %A - - - - -

Mr. Ding Guangping THRFEE - - = = =

Independent non- BYFHITES

executive directors

Mr. Zhang Shoulin SR <P AR A& 153 - 26 = 179

Mr. Tse Chi Man R E 153 - 26 - 179

Mr. Yao Xianguo ok ST B 5 A& 153 = 26 = 179
459 977 272 54 1,762

An analysis of directors’ remuneration by the BREEANEMHEcHEE YN EEZME

number of directors and remuneration range is as ST

follows:

2011 2010

S e —T=T#
Number of Number of
directors directors

ETAH EFEAH

Nil to HKD1,000,000 < 1,000,000/ 7T
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

There were no amounts paid during the year to
directors in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group, or inducement to join.
There was no arrangement during the year under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2010: two) are directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other three (2010:
three) individuals are as follows:

NCIA

ATEMENTS

EEME @)
FR - AKERE lﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%‘%ﬁﬂimﬁﬁ
AEENRBT N TESERKIEA

TER L E R WENLF EE&I%EH@H@
MR Bk

RE#HAL

AEEREESHFALH MH(ZF
—TF MB)REF  RENMER
BRME8 - Htb =2 (=T —TF : =
FIATHBEEBELT :

2011 2010

e Nl -= ==

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%E T NG R

Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ T& - & R E@EF 1,435 1,480
Contributions to defined contribution & %8 4t 3% 5 2l 4 7%

plan 75 63

1,543

Number of senior management BREERE A 3

The above individuals’ emoluments are within
the band of Nil to HKD1,000,000 (2010: Nil to
HKD1,000,000).

There were no amounts paid during the year to the
five highest paid employees in connection with their
retirement from employment with the Group, or
inducement to join.

bt A 8B £ F T £1,000,000%8 7T
(ZZT—ZF : £Z1,000,000% 7T) °

FRN ArEEMERLEESFESS
H%%‘JZVE%JJDEEZ!K%E%%EDWWESEN
EEf—J?rJ\
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of
RMB4,265,000 (2010: RMB4,877,000) which has

10 ARAERRREMSLRR

AArEmBRRELEESRZFBIEA
R#4 2650000 (ZE—FF : ARK
4,877,00070) M EE - ER AR BB

104

been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the

Company’s profit for the year:

WREIE

bt RE BN ) s A B BB

2011 2010
=t — T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N R
Amount of consolidated profit RARRMBHEREER
attributable to equity shareholders E 2 AR R B 4L
dealt with in the Company’s RERA e
financial statements (4,265) (4,877)
Dividends from subsidiaries AN B R T O N E A Y
attributable to the profit of the OpEER/NEGIE SN
current financial year, approved RE AR E
during the year 15,889
The Company’s profit for the year P N/NEET RS b
(note 23(a)) (Pt 3E23(a)) 11,012

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA




N

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 HZ2mEmW A
Tax effect relating to each component of HEM2EARASARTsNBHELE

other comprehensive income

2011 2010
—g--F —T-%F
Tax Tax
Before-tax  (expense)/  Net-of-tax Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
BBA B8 BRH#& B Bt A ME BBt 18
8 (BxX)/ 8% &8 ¢8 (AR)/BR £k
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETR ARBTE NSRRI L As

Exchange differences on BEFI
translation of financial NS
statements of overseas BBHREN
subsidiaries ERER (2,234) (2,234) (3,387) — (3,387)
Other comprehensive income  Eft 2 EWA (2,234) (2,234) (3,387) - (3,387)
12 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER 12 BEREAXAREERAR
SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) ERELREF
The calculation of basic earnings per share BREXRBMNBEFRANARAE
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary BREaDRREGENARY
equity shareholders of the Company of 36,040,000t (ZF —FF : AR
RMB36,040,000 (2010: RMB40,915,000) and #40,915,0007C) & B %47 I 3@ Bk
the weighted average of 415,000,000 ordinary /Y N4 S ¥9 81415,000,000 (= F —
shares (2010: 415,000,000) in issue during T4 : 415,000,000:T &0 -

the year, calculated as follows:

() Weighted average number of () ZBBEERINEFGE

ordinary shares

2011 2010
=S EEE N —T-TF
Number of Number of

shares shares

iR & i 2%

Issued ordinary shares
at 1 January (note 23(b)(i))

R—RA—HBEETH
38 Az (BT 3 23(0)(i) CICH OO0 415,000,000

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at
31 December

R+=—A=+—8H
3 A A
DOAE 15 & 415,000,000 415,000,000
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12 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER 12 SREXAREERF(#7)

SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share b) BREERR
The calculation of diluted earnings per share RESRAMNEARAAA LT BEER
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary % 2 & {5 & F) A R % 36,040,000
equity shareholders of the Company of T(Z T —ZF F: AR %
RMB36,040,000 (2010: RMB40,915,000) 40,915,000 ) K& & 18 I &9 I0 #E ¢
and the weighted average number of ordinary ¥ 80418,945205 (= F — T F
shares of 418,945,205 shares (2010: 415,000,000) 5T &E T :

415,000,000), calculated as follows:

(i) Profit attributable to ordinary () FRAEFE#EZKRREMN T
equity shareholders of the F (# %)
Company (diluted)
The interest expenses on the liability AERELFNEEIHDHF
component of convertible bonds (see BRAX(RMZF20) ERFERA
note 20) have been capitalised during BN - B E AR B
the year. Therefore, there is no effect ERREGEEMNTELE -

on the profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company.

(i) Weighted average number of (i) ZERBINEFIGE (#E)
ordinary shares (diluted)

2011 2010
= Lt T -TF
Number of Number of
shares shares
g A%
Weighted average number of ®n+=-—RAR=+—8H
ordinary shares at T AR B N HE T B
31 December 415,000,000 415,000,000
Effect of conversion of BT ERELSNTE
convertible bonds 3,945,205 =

Weighted average number of R+=—A=+—H

ordinary shares (diluted) at LI AR H hn A
31 December g (#E) EAEXELR LI 415,000,000
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 M%¥  -BERKRKE
The Group &
Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Major fixtures,
Buildings generator Other equipment  Assets under
and plants equipment machinery and others  construction Total
AE R
£E R
BFRERE TERERH Hitri e REM EEEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®Tr AR¥Tr AR%Tn AR¥Tn AR®Txn
Cost %S
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZE-ZE5-A—-H
% 99,190 717,585 171,832 13,067 2,012 1,003,686
Additions AE 3,133 43 628 1,845 6,634 12,283
Transfer from assets under SRATREE
construction 68 3,433 829 - (4,330) -
Disposals HE - - - (1,508) - (1,508)
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZZ-FF
+-A=t+-B&&Es 102,391 721,061 178,289 13,404 4,316 1,014,461
Additions NE 646 682 72 2,085 50,134 53,619
Transfer from assets under BRATEEE
construction 247 11,728 293 - (12,268) -
Disposals He (235) - - (14) = (249)
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZZ——F
TZA=t—ANES 103,049 733,471 173,654 1,067,831
Accumulated depreciation 2EE
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZE-ZEF-A—-HK
e (13,415) (104,536) (39,908) (7,146) - (165,003)
Charge for the year ENER (3,884) (29,950) (10,740) (2,262) - (46,836)
Written back on disposals HERE - - - 1,023 - 1,023
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZE-ZFF
+ZA=+—-Bt#&EH (17,299) (134,486) (50,646) (8,385) - (210,816)
Charge for the year FRER (3,613) (32,516) (10,462) (1,500) - (48,001)
Written back on disposals HEAR 4 - - 12 - 53
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZE——§
+-ZA=+—-BH#&EH (20,871) (167,002) (61,108) (9,873) (258,854)
Carrying amounts REE
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZE——F
TZA=T—HNAR 566,469 112,546 808,977
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZZ-FF
+t-A=t+—-B&&EH 85,092 586,575 122,643 5,019 4,316 803,645
ANNUAL REPORT 2011 =—Z——&E#H&
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

(0

(i)

(i)

All of the property, plant and equipment
owned by the Group are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2011, certain property,
plant and equipment with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB633,559,000 were
pledged as collateral for bank loans (2010:
RMB671,647,000) (see note 19(i)).

The refund of VAT on purchases of
depreciable assets has been deducted from
the carrying amount of the relevant assets.
The amount is transferred to income in the
form of reduced depreciation charge over the
useful lives of the relevant assets. This policy
has resulted in a reduction of depreciation
charge by RMB2,421,000 for the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: RMB2,226,000).
As at 31 December 2011, a balance of
RMB45,012,000 remains to be amortised
(2010: RMB47,433,000).

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

13 ¥ BERRKRESE)

REEE)

(i)

REMBEEOYE  BERREY
RIR R -

RZE——F+ZA=+—H0 &
BRI E A A R #633,559,0007T (=
T—TF : AR¥671,647,0007T)
METYWE BELEEARTE
KB (R HFE193) °

BEAMELENEERRKED
BREEERAEBENR - ZeBER
EBREENFRTHANUFTESE
BRI EREZRA o LR
SEHE_E——F+=A=+—
HEFEZIHEBRRILARE
2,421,000 (ZZE—ZFF : AR
#2,026,0007L) + MR =T ——4F
+-A=+—8 NELHEBARE
45,012,000t (ZE—ZFF : AR
¥547,433,0007T ) R 8 85 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 14 BEAEE
The Group K&
Cost AR 2
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZTE—TF-—H—BWN#&H 34,661
Disposals & (1,752)
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+_A=1+—HNEH 32,909
Additions wnE _
Balance at 31 December 2011 _ _ __ ] R-F_-EfZA=tRAdEs 32,909 _
Accumulated amortisation ZEEt#e
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZEF—-—A—BHNEH (3,765)
Charge for the year FRNER (8295)
Written back on disposals & 164
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZTE—ZEF+_A=+—HHE (4,426)
Charge for the year FANER (813)
Balance at 31 December 2011 _ _ _ _ ] R-F__ST-A-t-Ad&Es 65239
Carrying amounts REE
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZZTE——F+-_A=+—HHE 27,670
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZE—ZEF+_A=1+—HHEH 28,483
()  Lease prepayments represent cost of land use () TENELEREEEHAE0E50F
rights in respect of land located in the PRC B AR B bR (S B RE R AN o
with a lease period of 30 to 50 years when
granted.
(i) All land use rights were pledged as collateral (i) NEEBR FTELMERED AR
for bank loans at the balance sheet date (see TEFRMEEI (R M EE19()) o
note 19(j)).
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15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 BREMWE QT

The Company

b NN
2011 2010
Sl — T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T 1 NG Ry
Unlisted shares, at cost LIRS  ERAGE 358,044 358,044

The following list only shows the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TREZINTEFEAKEEE BE
FEEZHBRANEE KAEEHA
SN PR R RI R EBAR o

Place and date = Percentage of Issued and fully

of establishment/ equity attributable paid-up/registered Principal
Name of company Notes incorporation to the Company capital activities
=3y A KRR EMG BRITRBE
NEEE P =E HEK BB REBDL AMER  FEEXK
Direct Indirect
Hi i &

Amber Bluesky (HK) Hong Kong 100% — HKD10,001/  Investment
Limited 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
(“Amber Bluesky”)

RHEX (B%) &S 100% - 10,0018/  REEKR
BRRA —ZEEN\FRHA 20,0007 7T

( [3EmEX] ) —+7<H

Amber Jingxing (HK) Hong Kong 100% = HKD10,001/  Investment
Limited 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
(“Amber Jingxing”)

RHRE (B5) FE  100% - 10,0018,/  REER
BRAA] —EENF 20,0008 7T

( [FmpnE] ) SNAZ+NH

Amber Deneng (HK) Hong Kong 100% — HKD10,001/  Investment
Limited 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
(“Amber Deneng”)

wRIERE (B9%) &8 100% - 10,0018/  REEZFR
BRAR —TT)N\F 20,0007 7T

( [¥R3AfEse] ) ~NA=1+<H
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15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place and date

15 REMB QR4

Percentage of Issued and fully

of establishment/ equity attributable paid-up/registered Principal
Name of company Notes incorporation to the Company capital activities
B3 8 R 3L EDRELL BRTRER
DNERER Pt &£ B & B BREBDL HMERX FEER
Direct Indirect
B e &
Amber Anji (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% — HKD1/  Investment
(“Amber Anji”) 2 September 2008 HKD10,000 holding
wines (%) H&  100% - 18T/ REER
BRAF] —TTN\EF 10,0008 7T
( [FE\zsE] ) NAZH
Blue Sky Power Plant 0] The PRC - 100% USsD17,171,400/ Power
15 December 2004 USD17,171,400  generation
EXER FE - 100%  17,171,400%7T/ BE
—TTMEF 17,171,400% 7T
+=ZRA+HH
Jing-Xing Power Plant (ii) The PRC = 100% USD16,660,000/ Power
6 January 2005 USD16,660,000  generation
REBH FE —  100%  16,660,000%7T, BE
—TTRE 16,660,0003 7T
—ARH
De-Neng Power Plant (iii) The PRC — 100% USD18,408,710/ Power
18 August 2004 USD18,408,710  generation
EEEE R R —  100% 18,408,710%7T, ®E
—ETMEF 18,408,710 7T
NA+TNR
Aniji Power Plant (iii) The PRC = 100% USD16,000,000/ Power
25 February 2011 USD16,000,000  generation
TEBH HE —  100%  16,000,000%7T, BE
—E——%F 16,000,000% 7T
—“A=+#&AH
Notes: B E -

(i) Blue Sky Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino-
foreign equity joint venture and became a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise on 25 July 2008.

(i) Jing-Xing Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino-
foreign equity joint venture andbecame a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise on 5 September 2006.

(iii) De-Neng Power Plant and Anji Power Plant were established
in the PRC as sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

(i)

(i)

EXEBRARTEKINFIIEEDLE N
ZZENFELA-THERRIHBELE -

RAEEHERARFERINFIGEDLE K=
ZERFAATHARRINEBERLE -

i

¢

o

BEHRARPEKINFINEGE

7

>

E

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 =—Z——§EH&

111



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16 EWESKHEMAKIE

The Group The Company
rE ¥
2011 2010 2011 2010
A T T Bl T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T PNE:EwE ARY Tt PN R
Trade receivables FEWE P HIE 27,986 -
Amounts due from i ERNG]

subsidiaries A - 179,451 45,360
Prepayments TE A BUR 47,073 - —
Other receivables H b jE W FX I8 9,591 63 276
84,650 179,514 45,636

PrERIWE 5 R EMKIBRB AN —F
Mm@ - BEH R FERIOKREEH -

All of the trade and other receivables are expected
to be recovered within one year. Credit term
granted to power grid companies is 30 days.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables of the AEERKEZRENRE>NTOT -
Group is as follows:

The Group
AEE
2011 2010
il T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T N R
Not past due 7K #61 Hf 27,986 61,418
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17 PLEDGED DEPOSITS

17 2 BER

Pledged deposits can be analysed as follows: EERERI>TAT :

The Group
AEH
2011 2010
—=——5 LR X
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T LR

Guarantee deposits for issuance of
commercial bills and banking

BIOTEEREBERRT
EENRIFRK

facilities 132,513
18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 RERREZEEY
All the balances of cash and cash equivalents at the REER  FEREBREEEWER
balance sheet date are cash at banks and on hand. BIRTEREFBRRES -
19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19 5TEEE
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
ek T F
RMB’000 RMB’000

IN-L B AX®ETT

Current
Secured bank loans
Unsecured bank loans

Current portion of non-current

secured bank loans

Current portion of non-current

unsecured bank loans

Non-current
Secured bank loans
Unsecured bank loans

B HA
BEEBRITER 29,000 14,000
EEBRITER 160,000 180,000
R B MEITERD
B HA &6 2 55,000 25,060
JERNHAE IR MR ITTE R H
Bl HA &6 2 19,940
____________________ cZEXOLN 239,000
3k B 54
EEBRITER 139,000 212,200
EEBRITERK 100,000 35,500
____________________ eXCEOON 247,700
483,000 486,700
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B 7% ¥ 7= MY

19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19 FERBE#E)

(Continued)

()  The secured bank loans as at 31 December (i)
2011 carried interest at rates ranging from 6.56%
to 8.52% (2010: 5.10% to 5.94%) per annum
and were secured by the following assets:

—T——F+-_A=+—HBHHNEEK
FIRITE FILZF M %E6.56% £ 8.52%
(ZZF —FF :510%F 5.94%):t
B WA THEEEERR -

The Group
rEE
2011 2010
= Lt — T T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR F T
Carrying amounts of assets: BERMEAE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BEREZE 633,559 671,647
Lease prepayments EMAES 27,670 28,483
Pledged deposits EEAER 30,000 15,000
(i)  Unsecured bank loans as at 31 December i) —ZFE——F+=ZA=+—80H

2011 carried interest at rates ranging from
6.10% to 7.54% (2010: 4.86% to 6.39%) per
annum.

(i)  The Group’s non-current bank loans were (iii)
repayable as follows:

|IBLWBEITERIZFFNE6.10%
ET754%(ZF — T F 1 4.86%%

6.39%) it & o

AEEFEEIHRITE R E KRG W0

Within 1 year —F K

Over 1 year but less than 2 years BE-—FERFEA
Over 2 years but less than 5 years ~ #BBMF{E A F A

™
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
S B —T-Tf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T N
_ 55,000 L _415_,0_09 1
45,000 172,700
194,000 75,000
_ 239,000 L _2417_,7_09 i
294,000 292,700
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 29 November 2011, the Company issued
convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principal amount of HKD124,800,000.
The subscriber of the Convertible Bonds is
Amber International Investment Co., Ltd. (“Amber
International”), the immediate holding company
of the Company. The principal terms of the
Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(a) Optional conversion

The holder of Convertible Bonds
(“Bondholder”) may convert the Convertible
Bonds in integral multiples of HKD3,900,000
into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company
with a par value of HKDO0.10 each at an
initial conversion price (“Conversion Price”)
of HKD1.30 per share at any time from 29
November 2011 (the “Issue Date”) up to (and
including) 28 November 2016 (the “Maturity
Date”). The Conversion Price is subject to
adjustments in the manner set out in the
Convertible Bonds agreement as a result
of dilutive events. The maximum number
of ordinary shares that may be converted
is limited to the extent that following such
conversion, the shares held by public should
not be less than 25% of the then issued share
capital of the Company.

(b) Redemption
Unless previously converted, purchased or
cancelled, the Company shall redeem the
Convertible Bonds at the principal amount and
pay all the outstanding interest on Maturity
Date.

20 A EBREFES

R_ZE——F+—A=-+NH AAQA
1T H 7N 4 B 5124,800,0005 JT B A] 2
mES([JERESR]) - IBRESFN
REABARREZZER R A IABRK
KREBR AR ([FRIABE ) - AJEHE
FHEZERWOT ¢

(a) TEEBRR
EBRELSFBEANESERES
ANAIR=_E—F+—A=+N
B(I&#TBEDE-_T—X E+—A
—+tAB(RBEBD(B2EZB)
IFHEEMRER RS BRRKRE
(Mal B ER1.308 T HE5HE
753,900,000/ 7T £ &1 5 /) 7] 8 iR
BEHFERAEERROAD B
HECI0B LA LM% - MARE K
CREEEHIRAERES R
AR - AEBAR T Bk
B R ABRERRFRD D
RARBERDBITRAN25% 5
R o

(b) HEE
BRIEZRICE R  BESEHE A
ATERBPRRASEED A E
BMES  TEHEHIHREEFE -
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20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

As the functional currency of the Company is the
Hong Kong Dollar (*HKD”), the conversion of the
Convertible Bonds will be settled by exchange of a
fixed amount of cash in HKD with a fixed number of
the Company’s equity instruments. In accordance
with  the requirements of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments—Recognition and Measurement,
the Convertible Bonds agreement needs to be
separated into a liability component consisting
of the straight debt element and redemption
elements of the bonds, and an equity component
representing the options of the Bondholder to
convert the bonds into equity. The proceeds
received from the issue of the Convertible Bonds
have been split as follows:

() Liability component represents the fair value
of the contractually determined stream of
cash flows discounted at the prevailing
market interest rate applicable to instruments
of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the
same terms, but without the conversion
features.

The interest capitalised for the period from
the Issue Date up to 31 December 2011 is
calculated by applying an effective interest
rate of 9.72% to the liability component since
the Convertible Bonds were issued.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

20 TEBREZRE)
HRARBN R EE BB T(E
o)) BT ERESEHIETEHE 2
AAREBETARBMKIEESENBT
HemkE - RERESHERE0ES
MTE — ERARFTEZHT  JEH
BEEMBEADRABEDH (BRIFEEED
BEEBBHORERISNS)RRELSL D
(EEAFFEATBESERAREZ
BB  BITTEMESRE KRS
ST :

() BEBIDVENETRZREND
FE FRARSREREREBERA
EW BRI GREHABERRE
ME - BETNRBERFENTAME
RERITH G F KRB -

THE-_Z——F+= A
—H - FBETEANFEGRE
9 BEITAEREFRIZER
LI.72%:t&E -

20 mh |1 S
DKP_F)..&%

£
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20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

)

(Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the
Convertible Bonds was calculated using the
discounted cash flow model. The major inputs
used in the model as at the Issue Date were
as follows:

20 AEBRES(F)
0 (&)

AEREFBERD A FEIAE
RASRBAGE  ZRARET
AFERMNERBEMNT

Liability
component of
the Convertible

Bonds

AIEIRESN

=N g

Stock price f& & HKDO0.90
0.90/ 7T

Expected dividend yield T8 HR AR B X 4.4%
Risk-free rate for equity % 4 42 2 B A1) R 0.79%
Expected life TE 5T F A 5 years
hF

Volatility 8 59%

The Company’s stock price was HKDO0.90
as at 29 November 2011. The risk-free rate
was determined with reference to Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Notes sourced from the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority. The expected
life was the remaining life of the Convertible
Bonds. The volatility was determined based
on the historical share price volatility of the
Company.

Any changes in the major inputs used in the
model will result in changes in the fair value
of the liability component. The variables and
assumptions used in calculating the fair value
of the liability component are based on the
directors’ best estimates.

—E——%+—-A-tNB XR
A8 IR B /30.9078 7T © M [ i Al &
R2BREELCRHEERNER
SMEE S RBETE - BAFHRIA
HMESHNGTFY - KIRARE
ARAWELBREREETE

ZEAMANTIESE LR EME

B FEHABDHNAFELR
BE - HHEREDHOATFERE
RS BRERDENEF R

gt o
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20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(i

Equity component represents the conversion
options, which is determined by deducting the
fair value of the liability component from the
proceeds of issue of the Convertible Bonds as
a whole.

The movement of the liability component

20 AERES(F)
(i) MEXSBB|BEERE  BIEET

AEBREFNEIME
BE

FRIA P AR
DHRFEERE -

EA?\%TTE:I:—{__EE—'— H

and the equity component of the Convertible =+—H AEREFNAEETH
Bonds since the Issue Date up to 31 MREELD> BT -
December 2011 is set out below:
Liability Equity
component component Total
BES & #E &8 5t
RMB’ OOO RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT AR®TT
As at 29 November 2011 RZT——%
+—A=-+h8 74,720 27,080 101,800
Transaction costs on issue  Z1T O] B E A5 8
of the Convertible RS
Bonds (2,802) (1,015) (3,817)
Interest capitalised RZE——F
during the period from +—A=+ANH
29 November 2011 to E-T——4F
31 December 2011 +-A=+—8H
1 HA RS B o
B A A 527 — 527
Foreign currency INEME E R
translation difference (627) = (627)
As at 31 December 2011 RZT——%
+=-—A=+— 71,818 26,065 97,883

No conversion, redemption or purchase or
cancellation of the Convertible bonds has
taken place up to 31 December 2011.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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N

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BNEZKEMRIE

The Group The Company
AEHE N
2011 2010 2011 2010
A T T Bl T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T PNELEw ARE T kR
Trade and bill payables &+ & 5 A &
&t R R 20,906 202,247 =
Amounts due to FE BT B R &)
subsidiaries A 9,638
Other payables and H {th B BB &
accrued expenses FEET B XX
(see note 22) (R Kt3E22) 22,910 4,709 1,866
43,816 15,399 11,504

An ageing analysis of trade and bill payables of the
Group is as follows:

AEBRENESRERENEZRE 2 BRIEK
DT :

Within 3 months
Over 3 months but less than 6 months

=EAA

HE=EAEREARN

The Group
rEE

2011 2010
= aad - =7
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T & RN R
12,628 64,296
8,278 137,951
20,906 202,247

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 =—Z——§EH&

119



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

22 LONG-TERM PAYABLES 22 REAFEFIE

The Group
rEE
2011 2010
i T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB ARETT

Payable for purchase of property, plant B E ¥ ¥ - M= KR ED

and equipment JE 1 5/ I8 18,503 22,298
The balance represents payable for the purchase EHABEEDBRERENENKIE -
of an imported generator equipment. The BEREMmEARARMG0,448,0007T
nominal value of the purchase consideration of BER1I0FANB - ZeBEZATE
RMB60,448,000 is payable over a period of 10 (B HBEREAPNERFERITRGY
years. The amount has been measured at fair HeRSHAE):TE -

value being future cash outflows discounted at
the prevailing interest rates as at the respective
reporting dates.

Current portion of long-term payables of EHENZTEONENBIE S ARK
RMB7,131,000 (2010: RMB7,551,000) has been 7A31000 T(ZE—TF : AR
included in other payables and accrued expenses 7,5651,0007T ) B 5T A E fib FE 1~ 5018 & fE
(see note 21). A (R HFE21) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX-EBEEKRE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) BEHO2EH
The reconciliation between the opening and AEEGAERSHOFYHEFER
closing balances of each component of the MR HEREHENGEEEREEX -
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the RARER RIS FVERERZ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. FEFBOT

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
The Company VNN
Share Share  Contributed  Translation Retained Total
capital premium surplus reserve eamnings equity
BA  RHEE SARH  EXRE RERN b Eny ikl
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AR%®Fr ARBTI ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT AR®TR
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-F5—-A-A 36,582 92,724 358,044 (58) 8,035 495,327

Changes in equity for 2010: —E—ZEEEEH .

Profit for the year F s = = = = 11,012 11,012
Other comprehensive Hi2EKA
income = - - 4412) - 4.412)

Total comprehensive income  FR2ER AL

for the year - - — (4,412 11,012 6,600
Dividends to equity EERERE
shareholders 23(d) - - - (6,208) (6,208)
At 31 December 2010 R-E2-2%
+=ZA=+-H 36,582 92,724 358,044 (4,470) 12,841 495,721
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX -RBERERE &)
(Continued)
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) P28 (&)
(Continued)
The Company (Continued) KAT(E)

Share Share Contributed Translation Capital Retained Total

capital premium surplus reserve reserve earnings equity

BEx  KROBRE BABR BrFEE EARFE RKRERN EDLAER
\ic} RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(E ARBTT ARBTRT ARMTR AR¥TR ARETR ARBTR AR®TR

At 1 January 2011 R-B-—-%&
-A—-B 36,582 92,724 358,044 (4,470) 12,841 495,721

Changes in equity for —Z——%F

2011: BR2E:
Profit for the year F A F 30,631
Other comprehensive He2mBA

income (6,160) (6,160)

Total comprehensive FREZERABE
income for the year (6,160) 30,631 24,471

Dividends to equity BERERS

shareholders 23(d) (20,697) (20,697)
Equity component of ] &1 & 5 &)
convertible bonds Ean 20 26,065 26,065

At 31 December 2011 R=-Z——f
+=ZHA=+-H 92,724 358,044 26,065 (10,630) 22,775 525,560
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(b) Share capital

23 EX -REERBRE#E)

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of & % {E0.107 7T
i) % A R

HKDO.10 each

Ordinary shares, BZTRAR
issued and ZER

fully paid

At 1 January

At 31 December W+-A=+—8H

(b) B
The Group and the Company
AEERAAT
2011 2010
= —T %%
No. of Amount No. of Amount
shares RMB’000 shares RMB’000
Note 8 T8
Fiasx BHEE AR%¥Tr kir&gE ARBTRT
(U3 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 88,050
415,000,000 415,000,000 36,582
415,000,000 415,000,000 36,582
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX-BEERKRE#)
(Continued)
(b) Share capital (Continued) (b) BA&(#)

(i) The Company was incorporated in i) =—ZTZENFALANA XA
the Cayman Islands on 8 September AERERSFMKTL - &
2008 with an authorised share capital 7E f% AN A& 380,000 7% 7T ©
of HKD380,000 divided into 3,800,000 /3,800,000 f% & IX HE {E0.10
ordinary shares of par value HKDO0.10 BLTHEBR —ZTTNF
each. On 8 September 2008, one NANE  BEREAER
share was allotted and issued to the BRETRERMD  ERE
initial subscriber and was subsequently Az MHEZE TR
transferred to Amber International on B o —_BEFENF=ZA =+
the same date. On 20 March 2009, B ARQAMARE IEl Fffé HE %
two shares were allotted and issued RETMBRRD  AEER
to Amber International to settle the RINE AR R E S 583
consideration for the transfer of Blue Sky RERXEHRERLESE V )
Power Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant KE - ZZETNFRAT—
to Amber Bluesky and Amber Jingxing = N/NEST N B3 el N A i 5
respectively. On 11 June 2009, one &?’*ﬁ—ﬁxﬂxf’ﬁ A E W
share was allotted and issued to Amber RIAEEEEREEETRAON
International to settle the consideration g -

for the transfer of De-Neng Power Plant
to Amber Deneng.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the BERNRDAEFHE—K
then sole shareholder of the Company RRZZETAFEFNATN
on 18 June 2009, the authorised AHBEBMNRER X2 A
share capital of the Company was Sk F B% A B 380,000 & T
increased from HKD380,000 divided (% % 3,800,000 f% & @ A%)
into 3,800,000 ordinary shares # Z 100,000,000 7 JT (5D &
to HKD100,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 4% & i@ %)
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares.

(i) Pursuant to a written resolution of the (i) BERAQXGTEHENMH—IRE
then sole shareholder of the Company RZEBEZNFENA+N\BHBE
passed on 18 June 2009, 299,999,996 BRNEAAZR BEBHR
shares of HKD0.10 each in the 1% & {8 B & 30,000,000 7% 7T
Company were issued at par value on (28 K AR ¥ 26,446,000
9 July 2009 to the Company’s existing TIBEERN IR RZF
shareholder as at 18 June 2009 by ZRNFELtANALBMARRCZ
way of capitalisation of HKD30,000,000 TEENFAAATNABWNER
(equivalent to RMB26,446,000) from the % R ¥ T {8 ¥ 17 299,999,996
share premium account. % & A% E{E0.1078 TR AR A &

Bfn e

124 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 76 45 % ) =%

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Share capital (Continued)
(iiij) On 10 July 2009, 100,000,000 ordinary

shares of HKDO0.10 each were issued
at a price of HKD1.66 per share
under the share offer. The proceeds
of HKD10,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,814,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds
of HKD156,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB137,500,000), before the share
issue expenses, were credited to the
share premium account.

On 31 July 2009, the sole underwriter
of the share offer exercised the over-
allocation option for the issuance of
15,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO0.10
each at HKD1.66 per share. The
proceeds of HKD1,500,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,322,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds
of HKD23,400,000 (equivalent to
RMB20,629,000), before the share issue
expenses, were credited to the share
premium account.

(c) Reserves

(i)

Share premium

Pursuant to a written resolution of the
then sole shareholder of the Company
passed on 18 June 2009, 299,999,996
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the
Company were issued at par value on
9 July 2009 to the Company’s existing
shareholder as at 18 June 2009 by
way of capitalisation of HKD30,000,000
(equivalent to RMB26,446,000) from the
share premium account.

23 EX -REERBRE#E)

(b) BRA
(iii)

(c) &%
(i)

(&)
—TTAFEATH  BE
EHEEZRSR166ETH
8 & % 77 100,000,000 A% &
BREEIOBETH LB -
HERKM@EENRSXK
18 10,000,000 & ;L (HH & ©»
A R #8,814,000 7T) 5 A &
RAEAIMBRAEA B TERNK
BHBETHIWNABRE
156,000,000 % 7T (#H & B A
R # 137,500,000 7T) 5t A B%
mmEER -

—EThAhFLA=Z+—8 "
BOBZENBREBHEHEITHE
MR IR E - EEAR1.668
JT R (B #5277 15,000,000 % &
KEBECIOELHE®AE -
HE R G EERFTSHIE
1,500,000 T (HHE N AR
#1,322,0007T) 5t AR B Y
A - 2 T ARMBRRHD BT
7 Sz &9 AT 15 5K 3H 23,400,000
7T (B & K A R #20,629,000
TL)ET AR R ER -

KR GEE
BEARATERHME —RE
R=ZZFEZTAFA+N\ABE
BHNEEAZR  BBHER
1 % {8 Bk = 30,000,000 7% JT
(8 & N A R ¥ 26,446,000
TBEERAN AR  RZE
EANFLANHRBRARA =
ZEZENFEFNATNEHBNRA
% 3R ¥% T {8 % 17 299,999,996
A5 A E E0.1078 TLEY AN A &)
f& 5
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)

0]

(i)

Share premium (Continued)

On 10 July 2009, 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the Company
were issued at HKD1.66 per share
under the share offer. The excess of
the proceeds totalling HKD156,000,000
(equivalent to RMB137,500,000) over
the nominal value of the total number of
ordinary shares issued, before the share
issue expenses, were credited to the
share premium account of the Company.

An  additional 15,000,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the Company
were issued at HKD1.66 per share on 31
July 2009 pursuant to the over-allocation
option. The excess of the proceeds
totalling HKD23,400,000 (equivalent to
RMB20,629,000) over the nominal value
of the total number of ordinary shares
issued, before the share issue expenses,
were credited to the share premium
account of the Company.

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve comprises the following:

— the aggregate of paid-in capital
of the companies comprising
the Group as at 1 January 2009,
after elimination of investment in
subsidiaries;

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

23 EX -REERBRE#E)

(c) RE(#E)

() BRGZEE)
—TETENFELATH BEKH
BERT1.668 TR BT
100,000,000 % & A% E 1E0.10 7% 7T
MARR LR - RIOKBRKRG BT
2 F /) AT 15 3¢ 18 48 %5 156,000,000
BT E R AR ¥ 137,500,000
TBBERTERRAHmED
- BEsF ARG EE
,@IE °

R_ZEZAFLA=Z+—8 1R
BB RERETR1.668TEIT
7K X ) B 45,000,000 0% = A% (&
0.10 TR ZMAR - RIMBRAR 10
178 A/ FT 15 3B #8 8823,400,000
77T (B8 M A R #20,629,0007T )
BADEHTEERAHEMENH
B EFARREHRGRER -

BiraERNERXRASBHS R
ERE -

(i) EBEXFE
BEXARBEREATAR

— XAEBEBETRAR-FE
ENF-A—HHNEH
PR AR5 (B R B~
AZIREHE)
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX-REBEKRE#)
(Continued)
(c) Reserves (Continued) (c) *EE(#E)
(i) Capital reserve (Continued) (i) BEX#MEE)
— the difference between the total — REBRZ-ZZEEZENEF
amount of consideration paid and Uk BE 1% BE | BR47 %M #E
the total carrying value of non- B PRI (B AR5 B AR
controlling interests acquired, for WHEEERER CRE
acquisition of 47% equity interest in BERERE
De-Neng Power Plant by the Group
in 2009;
— capital contribution by Amber — RHEBERZ-_ZTNAF
International of a dividend 5 IE W= EEE A AR B
receivable from De-Neng Power AE R

Plant in 2009; and

— the amount allocated to the — R IE M EE20)(iv)FT BT 8
unexercised equity component BmEFBEAN SRR
of Convertible Bonds issued WRAQARFET 28
by the Company recognised in BREHFHRITEEZR I
accordance with the accounting NESENEE -

policy adopted for Convertible
Bonds in note 2(j)(iv).

(iii) Merger reserve (i) & OFEE

Merger reserve represents the excess EHNHEBEEASEEETHWE
of the aggregate of paid-in capital of RAEIRBAEBRR =T
the subsidiaries comprising the Group FRNARETEKRN Z2EA
pursuant to a reorganisation completed (EHDEHOBRABEER
in June 2009 for the Listing (the BARR BRI ARAE (BNAR R A
“Reorganisation”) of the Group over the EABRBEFTBITRMHEE)
consideration paid by the Company, 2B o

representing the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)

(iv) Contributed surplus

(v)

Contributed  surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing
and Amber Bluesky determined on the
basis of the consolidated net assets
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing
and Amber Bluesky at the date of the
Reorganisation over the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

PRC statutory reserve

Statutory  surplus reserves were
established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations
and the articles of association of those
companies comprising the  Group
which are established in the PRC.
Appropriations to the reserves were
approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, statutory
surplus reserves can be used to make
good previous vyears’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital in
proportion to the existing equity interests
of investors, provided that the balance
after such conversion is not less than
25% of the registered capital.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

23 EX -REERBRE#E)

(c) fEEE)
(iv) #AEE

v)

BABBREREIRADEE
RIRERIFIHERERE
EFEETNIRARE 5K
HRELRFEHERKRORE
HEHNAFEBBARR
EARBMBETROMNEE
LB -

H B £ E 1
AEBBRFEHEERETBEM
B8R MOR R A R P B
VHNAREEBETERARNE
RARMKRY - FRBERDE
BEEFEEHE -

BERRBNEERSRFEE
R IAE FE ey E 18 (1
B) MARKREERERE
LA EBmAER - EEBRR
MERTEIRNEMELRD
25% °
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Reserves (Continued)
(vi) Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed
to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2011 was RMB115,499,000
(2010: RMB105,565,000).

Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

23 EX -REERBRE#E)

(c) fEE#E)

(vi) THRDIRGEE
BERESBESAFE AR
ARNDBEERTARARKRRE
fEH 9 K 3 X 1 AR B ’r&@
E%{/Eﬁ/ /fﬁiﬁfﬂ& \_,\E
B ARFRIBEBRIIZNAR
AE¥FBREINBENESE -

4>+

RAIN=F——%+=AH
_+—E| /) AT 9 R RS
% A A R % 115,499,000
77:(: T—ZTHF: ARE
105,565,0007T) ©

(d RE
(i) FAEMNELAEEKREK

Py

2011 2010
= e — T T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%E T N R
Interim dividend declared FAREEIR KK H
and paid during the year of A HA AR B & RR0.03% 7T
HKDO.03 per share —T-FTF : |)
(2010: Nil) —
Final dividend proposed after ¥R 4 H Hi1& ## )k & 21 A% 8
the reporting date of & [%0.0257%8 7T
HKDO.025 per share (ZE—ZTF
(2010: HKDO.03 per share) & [%0.0378 7T) 10,474

The final dividend proposed after the
reporting date has not been recognised
as a liability at the reporting date.

mMEABEBERRBREL
Xﬁﬁ’t\ﬁﬁiﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁ@w%ﬁfﬁ °
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EX - RFERKRE(E)

(Continued)
(d) Dividends (Continued) (d BRE(#)
(ii) Dividends payable to equity (i) FF A HEER IR AT B FE (K
shareholders of the Company NEEmREL—BEFE
attributable to the previous R’ E

financial year, approved and paid
during the year
2011 2010
Lt T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET = IENSiR

Final dividends in respect of B4 A 8t i MR 5 #Y
the previous financial year, F—VBRFERBRE

approved and paid during & R%0.037 7T
the year of HKD0.03 per —E-FF:
share (2010: HKD0.017 F80.017%8 L)

per share) 6,206

24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management

24 RITHA
B % 3 B i 38
Overview HE i

The Group has exposure to the following risks AEFEHHXELMTEMNUTRR

arising from financial instruments:

o credit risk

s FEERR

liquidity risk s REBEALER
market risk o TWIZER

This note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring

AME2IAEEMEY Lt XER
BB AKREGFEREERARZH
B BREERF UARAEEZEXRE

and managing risk, and the Group’s management IE o
of capital.
(a) Credit risk (a) EERE

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Group’s receivables from customers.

EERRESRIAZEPIRS
BHORBITEHNEEN S AEBA
XMBERZAR  TBEREASK
B U T P RA -
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Zhejiang Electric Power Corporation and
Huzhou Electric Power Bureau are the
customers of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Credit risk for power plants in the PRC
power industry is concentrated on a limited
number of power grid companies. However,
the management, having considered the
strong financial background and good credit
worthiness of the power grid companies,
believe there is no significant credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other trade receivables are set
out in note 16.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

24 &R T R (%)

MBREREEE)

BEIE (42)

(a) EEEREE)
1= B /a1
AEENGEERRIEREBREE
SREMPKIE - EEEBEHEIEE
BR  UHEEERZSFEEAR -

HMIEHNRBRAMENBRETE
BHEE—FT——Ft+-_A=t+—H
LEENER -

EERBRAGE M BN RAIE
TREENKREERR -

EFREESN ”% ERzEERR
EFELHEEHEQR - KW E#ER

*ﬁﬂjﬁﬁaﬁﬁrﬂﬁﬁﬂ
o BEEERSAKREAESKE
EER -

FAAEEEYERE S R EAM
HBEEMNEERBNEMS(HE
EHNMIFE16 -

(b) REEZLERE
nBERBIEASEERTEIN
IR EMEREEZ T E
NzemAREHEIEERBIMN
}_l‘ |§un o
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24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 24 &I R(#)
Financial risk management (Continued) BREREREE)
Overview (Continued) BEE ()
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) HEEZLEEE)
The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is AREBEERHESHHEREIE

to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Group’s
reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements

FREMNBER T EERRERE
BRBNABDECEEDREEMN
TEEEBEARENBRIAFER
SENBE -

AEENBREEHRERINGRA
HRBELFTRLARETERRZY

and its compliance with any lending MER  BRESAVIESEENR
covenants, to ensure that it maintains ESTXTEopmlEREIREZ AR

sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following are the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities, including estimated interest
payments and excluding the impact of netting

B ENEHNEHORDESF

NTREBABBENSOIMBER
BREMGEMEMNR  BYEF LY
HBRNTE

agreements:

The Group

A EE
Year ended 31 December 2011
BHE_Z——F+t-A=1t—-HLEFE

Total Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on More than
amount cash flow demand one year
AFERAE —-FRH
REE mERHE RERE HB—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR%®Trn ARBTrR AR%Tx
Interest-bearing borrowings 3t B £ & 483,000 574,213 255,274 318,939
Trade and other payables  ERE 5 &
H 58 43,816 43,816 43,816 —
Long-term payables REIRE N 50E 18,503 24,764 — 24,764
Convertible Bonds AERES 71,818 111,125 2,024 109,101

617,137 753,918 301,114 452,804
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Overview (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The Group (Continued)

24 TRIR(#E)

MEREBERE)
B (E)
(b) HEELEE(E)
AEEE)
Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_T-ZTF+-A=+—HLEE

Total Within one
Carrying  undiscounted year or on More than
amount cash flow demand one year
ATBERE —FRH
RHEE mELHE R E R Bilm—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FTrT AR®FTr AR%®TR AR%Tx

Interest-bearing borrowings 5t S & & 486,700 532,742 261,534 271,208
Trade and other payables B E 5 &
H fth 308 221,598 221,598 221,598 —
Long-term payables RHEMFE 22,298 30,803 = 30,803
730,596 785,143 483,132 302,011
The Company AR F
Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-E-——-F+-A=+-BLFE
Total Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on More than
amount cash flow demand one year
AFRAE —FRAR
fREE TEAE RERE BB—-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR AR®BTx
Convertible Bonds AERE S 71,818 111,125 2,024 109,101
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(c)

Market rate risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates, will affect the Group’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return.

(i)

Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange
transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank
of China or other institutions authorised
to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rate adopted for the foreign
exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank
of China that are determined largely
by supply and demand. Changes in
exchange rate affect the RMB value
of sales proceeds of products that are
denominated in foreign currencies.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

24 eRIA#)
MBREREEE)

#Et (4)

(c)

5 | F 7 B2

™5 R e E (Bl IMEE R &
MER)EHZEAKE WAL
TR TEEBEENRER MmERARE

B B AR AR E R R E

B

REFTSEARENZEZBEA

(i)

EWE B

AR®EATT B @& XK
B-FMEPRARBENINE
RpHABBTEARRKRIT
HEMEREEEINERH
BET -IEXRZEATE
ARBITAHARAER - %
FEXTREMREE - E
ERHBERTEAIINETED
EmHERMBARKEERE -
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Overview (Continued)

(c) Market rate risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the reporting date to
currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they
relate.

24 &R T R (%)

BERREEE)

BEFE ()

(c) THEREmME (&)

(i) E¥@EKE)

B &
TERHFNAEB N HREBH
EAMERE AT EY e &M
EHNEEREESABTE
EREERR o

2011 2010
ZE— —F Rk s
USD’000 USD’000
FER FEx

Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEFED -
Trade and other payables BB 5 REMKIE (169)
Gross balance sheet exposure & E B & & FTiF E 8 4258 (169)
The following significant exchange rates UTAEFNERNTFERER :
applied during the year:
2010

== % fﬁ

UsbD ET 6.6227

Sensitivity analysis

A 5 percent strengthening of the RMB
against the following currency at 31
December would have increased profit
before tax by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2010.

R W
RT-ZA=1t—H ' AR¥
BT E¥ T EE%S B
HI@%IJ&TﬁIJ%%Ei*bD“
DT T RER P E A 8 (R
RIRFIR) MR A& - DT
A EER T —FTEHK
RE—B -
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)
(c) Market rate risk (Continued)

0]

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

24 £RTITRA(#)
MSEREEE)

Bt (%)

(c)

TEFERE (&)

U]

Effect on profit before tax

usb e

HRRAEFNORZE

A 5 percent weakening of the RMB
against the above currency at 31
December would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above currency to
the amounts shown above, on the basis
that all other variables remain constant.

Interest rate risk

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, interest-bearing
borrowings and Convertible Bonds are
the Group’s major types of financial
instruments subject to interest rate risk.
Cash and cash equivalents are with
fixed interest rates ranging from 0.01%
to 1.31% per annum for the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: 0.001%
to 1.17% per annum). Pledged bank
deposits are placed to satisfy conditions
for issuance of commercial bills and
bank facilities granted to the Group, with
fixed interest rates ranging from 2.75%
to 3.3% per annum for the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: 0.36% to
2.5% per annum).
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(i)

EWERA
SR SE 7 T (A
2011 2010
Sl — T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T & NS R
78

EFMEEBESEEFTEDN
BAT A+=ZA=+—8H
ARBHL L E% R ERS
B BEY LR EREL
SHREMERNEE -

Fl = = B

AEBGEMNERRBRN
MITAEFZHEABERS
MEEEEY - BEFE
THEZR FEEBE R E
BmELR - BE_T——F
+-—_A=+—BLtFE-
RehkREEBYHETF
FMENF001%E1.31% (=
T—ZTF : FF %0001%
£117%) c EEBR T T
HNEARERAEERENTR
ANEBATERITEENIRY
mE H#F2_ZT——F+=
A=z+—RLFEMNETEF
A &N F275%% 3.3% (=
T—TF : FHEIRE
2.5%) °
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Overview (Continued)
(c) Market rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Profile

At the reporting date, the interest rate
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing
financial instruments was as follows:

1 7 38 i 2

24 &R T R (%)

MHEEEEERE)
BEIE (42)
(c) THEFEmE (&)
(i) N=IREbE
#x
RBEEEH  AEEHEE
EMTAENMEERMT

Fixed rate borrowings
Variable rate borrowings

¥ R

e
ofF T
M

\
’

2011 2010
Sl T <7
RMB’000 RMB’000
N B ARETT
111,818 130,000
443,000 356,700
554,818 486,700

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed
rate borrowings

The Group does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable
rate borrowings

As at 31 December 2011, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax for the year and
consolidated equity by approximately
RMB3,562,000 (2010: RMB3,937,000).

JE B A& E /Y E B E S
Va

AEBEYTEEBBERAF
EERAELZREE  Hit
RBEEAHNNEEH TS

E/ B = N7
FEEL -

|

N

FEBEENE 2% EHEE

3

O
=4

RZE——F+=_RA=+—
B Betfafl=zgg tH/
THI0MEES mAAEH
HmEHEFTE  AEE
FRANBRBE RN REEE
=R EMHARE
3,562,000 T(Z & — & F :
AR #3,937,0007T) °
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24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 24 E@MIA®)

profit after tax and consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting date and had been applied

Financial risk management (Continued) BERRERE)
Overview (Continued) Bt (48 )
(c) Market rate risk (Continued) (c) THEFERE (&)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) F=@ER(E)
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable FEEEENE 2 TEHNBE
rate borrowings (Continued) ST (&)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates EXBBRESNER  B&
the instantaneous change in the Group’s WEBHMNAEEREYL A

REHFERNEEFRFRK
SRAHRSAEEERERER
B R R R e HE BRI B IETT
AT A - RIS ERR B &%

to re-measure those floating rate non- MEkFmeaEagNREE -
derivative instruments held by the Group WAREBGBBRBEMNEGES

which expose the Group to cash flow RN EEitBYE R X E
interest rate risk at the reporting date. FEMEBEIHNEEZE -
The impact on the Group’s profit after AMERANELER _T—F
tax and consolidated equity is estimated FRRBAE -

as an annualised impact on interest

expense of such a change in interest

rates. The analysis is performed on the

same basis for 2010.

(d) EBEFXEHE
AEEEREEANTERANAERR
EASEAHELE  REZRR
I HX [0 3 Ko /5 E At K 25 40 B8 U5 T EX
M TRTBFRENELERE &
BEARRA °

(d) Capital management
The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for
equity shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

S B A 01 B 3 A2
M 3R 1 B AL AR
%R R 01 R SR AR A A SRR M B
RARFER T - 3 R4S R R 8 2
EBEREM -

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher equity
shareholders’ return that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

138 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

24  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Overview (Continued)

(d) Capital management (Continued)

(e)

The Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt
(including all interest-bearing borrowings as
well as Convertible Bonds and long-term
payables, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
equity attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, plus net
debt. The Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to equity shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders or
sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December is as
follows:

24 E®MIA#E)

MBREREEE)

BEIE (42)

(d) EXEE(E)
AEBABAEEALXR(AER
FERNEARB)EREARAR
B ERFRANERAR(BELR
B ERRKRMIIO BT EE
EEABHRESRRBEMNHIER)
BAEMAECEEMAE - BEXR
BAREAMBRRRIEA R RE
SR REAEEDNERFEER - A%
[ 7] 35 58 58 B K AN T #E a5 ROR MY AR
B BITHER  MERREEEARN
HEBEEMDER -

Rt-A=+—BHAEEALE
mF

2010
—E-FF

Gearing ratio

BEEARLL R

40.43%

Fair value

The carrying amounts of significant financial
assets and liabilities approximate their
respective fair values as at 31 December 2011
(same for 2010).

(e) 4FE
RN-_EBE——F+_A=+—H &
AEeMEERABNFEAERES
BAFEEE(ZE—ZFIEA) -
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25 COMMITMENTS 25 AEiE
()  Capital commitments in respect of purchase () RIEBFEEZER TENZEAH
of property, plant and equipment outstanding BHREBERENNBEDE - K
at the year end but not provided for in the EREBEAREE FHBEWOT :
consolidated financial statements were as
follows:
2011 2010
= Lt — T T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥ T N R
Authorised but not contracted for B & #E{E R ET 4 487,238 83,551
Contracted for SR 389,930 3,783
877,168 87,334
(i)  Non-cancellable operating lease rentals were (i) ENHTIRELEHERS T
payable as follows: .8
2011 2010
= Lb N — T -TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
INL B ARETT
Less than 1 year LR —F 690 1,124
Over 1 year but less than 5 years BB —FERAFNK 700 164

1,390 1,288
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the vyear ended 31 December 2011,
transactions with the following party are considered
as related party transactions. The following is a
summary of the principal related party transactions
carried out by the Group with the below related
parties for the year.

Name of party
BELER

BHER
Ha2_FT

B EBTIALTZRERAEBEAR
S - UTEBAEEETIBEESIRFR
NETBHEFRIIBE -

2
——F#+-A=+—-AL#F

xt

Relationship

BiE

Amber International

BRIABIER

(@) Significant related party transactions
and balances with related party

Particulars of significant transactions between
the Group and the above related party during
the year ended 31 December 2011 is as

Immediate holding company of the Company

ARARHEEER AT

() HBEFETHNEXRBELIRS
R &
AEERFABEETRBEE-F
——Ft+-_A=1T-HLFENE
ARZHBWOT :

follows:
2011 2010
il — T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt BUNGE: B
Issue of Convertible Bonds BROUHEBRES
Amber International (see note 20)  ¥F I B & ( B Bt 7£20) 101,800 =

The balance arising from the above
transaction as at 31 December 2011 is as
follows:

2 FE——F+_-_A=+—H"

ERRBEEMZBOT ¢
2011 2010
el T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
INL Bl AR TT

Convertible Bonds EBRES
Amber International IR 30 B B

71,818 =
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

27

28

(Continued)

(b) Key management personnel
remuneration

26 BMEAIRS (&)

b) FEEBAEMS

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

SN E R
RERLIR B A

2011 2010
el T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T NS
3,266 3,188
180 117
3,446 3,305

Total remuneration is included in “personnel
costs” (see note 5(ii)).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After the reporting date, the directors proposed a
final dividend on 23 March 2012. Further details are
disclosed in note 23(d).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTIES

As at 31 December 2011, the directors of the
Company consider the immediate and ultimate
controlling parties of the Company to be Amber
International and GDZ International Limited,
respectively, both of which are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. These entities do not produce
financial statements available for public use.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

27

28

B 2T A8 TRA (M #F
5(ii))

HEBRRSBHE

REBHPE BEER_T——_F=A
“+tZHEZRERPRE - HaF1E
B FE23(d) & -

HERKRERS

ARBEERE RZTE—F+=AH
=t+t—H XARANEEBERRKIER
F o R A IHBEE RGDZ  International
Limited (R EBE LB S FMAL) -
FAYNEINE 3 U /NGRS R Rp
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29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 B=Z

NEW STANDARDS AND

DECEMBER 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the IASB has issued a number of
amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2011

—E——%+-A=+-HL

FECEMERKRERVIEET -
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET AEARZERNATEEE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

BEZTUBBRNNERAY  BRE3
EUZEQEEMBE_T——F1+=
A=+t RLEFEHREREREZE
MR E W ARRE 2 ZRIEET RFE]

and which have not been adopted in these financial ¥R RlcEANEEMEMBEBRIE VB
statements. These include the following which may I

be relevant to the Group:

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUATHE#HHZ%

BRI LN

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures — 1 July 2011
Transfer of financial assets

BURR B 7 S 2RI SB 7 5% SHMIE : BE —HEepEE —E——F+tH—H

CCHEN,
Amendments to IAS 12
B e ERE 1257 (BFTA)

Amendments to IAS 1

B et ERIF1% (BATA)

IFRS 10

B R B 75 ¥ o5 BRI B 1058%

IFRS 11
BIFR B 75 RSB 1157

IFRS 12
BR A 55 S 5 AR RIS 1 257

Income taxes — Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets

PISH — EENIA - BOAREE

Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income
MBHR&RNES — B2 ERAIER &
£5

Consolidated financial statements

e MBRE

Joint arrangements

BERH

Disclosure of interest in other entities

REMEEERD KR

1 January 2012

—#—H—H
1 July 2012
——®+A—H

1 January 2013
—F-—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
E—=4—f—H

1 January 2013

—F—=F—H—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2011 =—Z——§EH&

143



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 29 BE=-ZE——H+=-A=+—HLt
NEW STANDARDS AND FECEME R RERWIEET ~ #
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET FTERRZREN RS E &)

EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2011 (Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUATE#HSz%
IR S B EN
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
0 5 Bt 765 e e R | 35 1 355% NEEHE —E-=F—H—H
IAS 27 Separated financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013
AT ERIFE275R BIVBHRE (Z2——%) —T—=%—H—H
IAS 28 Investments in associates and 1 January 2013
joint ventures (2011)
B & 5t 2E R 5 285% REFERRIREEREZRE —ZE—=%—H—H
(ZZ——%)
Revised IAS 19 Employee benefits 1 January 2013
IR s ERIFE195% (KEF]) EERBH —ET—=%—H—H
Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: 1 January 2015
Disclosures — Mandatory
BB B s SR e YR R 3B 7 5% SEITA : HE — wbln —T-h¥—H—H
(EFTA)
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2015
I A B 75 e o AR R SR 9% SHMITHE —ZE-hF—H—H
Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2015
0 A B 755 i 5 HE I B 955% SRITA —E-hF—H—H
(EETA)

The Group is in the process of making an NEB I FETHSETERE 5 XE
assessment of what the impact of these AHENZE - HEBfAILE r &~NE
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial REERALNZSEBTITEHAEBNKLE
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption HEENRVBERILIEEKNZE o

of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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